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Annual Summary Fiscal Years Ended February 28, % Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)

Net sales $ 559,397,000 $ 365,353,000 53.1

Earnings before income taxes 63,971,000 37,465,000 70.7

Income taxes 23,434,000 14,506,000 61.5

Net earnings 40,537,000 22,959,000 76.6

Dividends 15,780,000 11,574,000 36.3

Per share of common stock:

Basic net earnings 1.59 1.21 31.4

Diluted net earnings 1.58 1.19 32.8

Dividends .62 .62 --

Weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding-basic 25,452,582 18,935,533 34.4

Weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding-diluted 25,728,299 19,259,550 33.6

C O N T E N T S
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K e i t h  S .  Wa l t e r s
Chairman, CEO and President

L E T T E R  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S

Ennis has the look and feel of a new company as we begin our 97th year in business.  The
number of facilities, the new size of our business, and the new markets resulting from last
year’s acquisitions were challenges that all stakeholders in Ennis naturally shared with
concern.  The financial performance of the combined enterprise in 2006 has put many of
those questions to rest.  We were pleased by our financial results for the 2006 fiscal year.  The
highlights of the year were:

• Revenues increased by $194 million over last year, or 53%.  
• Profits approximately increased from $23 million to $41 million, or 77%.  
• Diluted EPS increased from $1.19 per share to $1.58, or 33%, after adding the additional

9 million shares issued for the acquisitions. 

The details of the year’s results are discussed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section.

THE NEW OPPORTUNITIES

The successful addition of the Apparel Segment (Alstyle) has modified our business model in
several ways.  We have listed five points below which are worth further consideration.

• Ennis now has better opportunities for organic growth than in the printing industry alone.  
• Our profits are now spread across a larger base of the economy.  
• We have acquired an established business base outside the U.S. marketplace.  
• Our acquisitions have brought an influx of young talented executives with innovative 

ideas, business background experiences, and cultures.  
• Ennis’ new scale  of size (revenues and market capitalization approximately doubled in 

two years) is producing possibilities not available previously. 

Our opportunities for organic growth come from two directions with the addition of the
apparel group.  Alstyle Apparel’s market segment (active-wear) is still growing.  While the

estimates of this growth vary from 2% to 4%, it is a
market niche that should continue to grow at least as
fast as the projected rate of increase in population.
The second growth direction is in our expanded
presence in the Canadian and recent expansion into
the European markets.  Essentially no Ennis revenue
has been from non-domestic markets in the past.
These two avenues of growth should help to insulate

us against an economic downturn, something the print business can no longer ensure.

This year Ennis earned 41% percent of its profits from business outside the print industry.
We believe it is a positive for all our stakeholders as Ennis broadens its profit base into the
wider economy. The core competencies of our management lie in the process of
manufacturing, a skill set which has application well beyond the print industry.  The apparel
acquisition has allowed us to exploit those capabilities on a larger scale, and in a new industry.
The major improvement in the product margins at Alstyle Apparel are positive evidence of the
success of this model, as well as the excellent performance of the Alstyle management team.

““This year Ennis earned 41%
of its profits from business
outside the print industry.
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Ennis is now an international company.  We transact business in El Salvador, Honduras, China,
Bangladesh, Philippines, Canada, Mexico and the European Common market.  Canada is a
substantial customer for our products, the European Common market is an emerging
customer, and Asia is an efficient sourcing partner for select products.  Mexico and El
Salvador provide productive manufacturing facilities with quick delivery to market.  It may
come as a surprise that over half of the Ennis employee base of approximately 6000, are
based outside the United States.  We are confident the experience being gained in
international markets will serve the company in the future in ways we have not 
yet identified.

Our growth has brought Ennis an infusion of “new talent.”  The President of our Apparel
Group and our newest corporate officer, Todd Scarborough, is one of several young innovative
managers that Ennis has acquired in the past year.  These executives have brought a level of
depth, youth, new experiences, and drive to our 97 year old company.  Another important gain
is in the character and cultural diversity of our new employees and managers.  As American
demographics have shifted, so has the Ennis workforce, which we view as an advantage in
understanding the trends of the future in an increasing global marketplace.    

Scale does have its advantages in business!  The benefits of size have become apparent as
Ennis has grown.  Some of these gains, such as increased purchasing power, market
recognition, improved shareholder interest, and banking leverage were to be expected, but
others came as a pleasant surprise.  We have found that some large companies find a new
larger Ennis a more compatible business partner.  In one such case, a large company
contacted us to quote their print needs; a company we had never considered as a potential
client.  We tested several other large companies and learned of our new acceptance in their
realm of possible vendors.  We plan to use this new view of Ennis by large companies as a
selling point in helping our distributors gain market share from the large direct selling print
companies.  Market share shifts from the direct selling companies to the distributors is a
trend that has been progressing for years.  A larger Ennis may be able to accelerate that trend
to the distributors’ benefit if acceptable partnerships can be forged.  While these possible
gains will not change the long term slow decline in the print industry, it may help Ennis
continue to extend our positive cash flow in the Print Segment.  These Fortune 2000
companies are essentially a new market for Ennis and its distributors.

THE CHALLENGES

The fiscal year delivered many challenges along with the opportunities presented by these
changes.  The integration of Alstyle Apparel was not without its difficulties for both Ennis and
Alstyle management.  Several management changes were made in the Alstyle staff during
the early period of transition.  The Alstyle executives had no previous experience in the public
company arena, and had to learn these skill sets in the dynamic Sarbanes-Oxley evolving
environment.  We are pleased with the progress and patience displayed by all the employees
of Alstyle Apparel.  The integration process has progressed more smoothly than expected.  
In the final analysis, they were able to accomplish this transition to a public company 
while delivering record sales and profits; a feat we rarely see executed in the world 
of acquisitions.

L E T T E R  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S
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The Print Segment also dealt with a major new program for a customer.  Unfortunately, the
program did not develop in practice as we understood and quoted the project.  The timing and
product mix changes cost far more than we had anticipated.  The cost of oil also added to this
problem, as the substrate used in the program was a plastic material.  Ennis did deliver the
product on schedule at the agreed price, but not at a profit to us.  Since the customer also
was developing into a substantial credit risk, we decided to move away from this project for
the future.  Our management learned much in the process, but not without a cost.  These
issues are currently all behind us.

OUR GOALS AND VALUES

We believe it is important to note that the basic goals and values of Ennis have not changed
in this process of transformation and growth.

• Our commitment to the printing industry remains strong, and we plan to continue with
printing acquisitions that fit our proven model.

• The Ennis focus on profits, as opposed to revenue growth at the expense of profits will 
remain unchanged.

• Ennis’ merger and acquisition strategy will continue to focus on partners who want a 
future for the business they built, as opposed to a harvesting.

• We will continue our conservative business practices in our financial management of 
the enterprise.

• The de-centralized structure of our operating units will continue.

A few comments on our de-centralized management structure are in order.  The first four
items, listed above, have been discussed extensively in previous letters.  We are often asked
by shareholders if we have the resources to manage the additional businesses.  The key is
that the majority of our businesses are regional in nature.  Many customers of the print
businesses prefer to buy from local suppliers.  Our structure puts substantial authority in the
hands of the local management.  This model is repeated as we add additional businesses.

This allows the managers and employees of
the facility to react quickly to changing market
demands that may be only regional in nature.
Our mid-level executives from corporate
oversee as many as twelve facilities, a
number which is far higher than in command
and control management formats common in
large companies.  We find this model a

positive during acquisition negotiations, as it provides continuity of control for the current
management at the potential target company.  The combined companies still enjoy the scale
advantages of one large company, such as raw material, health insurance, joint programs with
customers, et cetera.  Actually both the employees and customers gain the advantages of
large and small companies.  The downside is that this structure is only as good as the local
management and systems that operate the business.  That is why we continue to spend
considerable time and effort in integrating our ERP systems into the new companies. 
This allows corporate and local management to operate effectively in this 
de-centralized style, while maintaining the information needed to effectively manage a large
public company.

““We will continue our conservative
business practices in our financial
management of the enterprise.
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SPECIAL RECOGNITION

In the past year, three long-term leaders of the company entered retirement.  Board of
Director Robert Mitchell recently announced he will not seek another term.  Mr. Mitchell was
employed by the Company from 1969 to 1985 and is a past President and Chief Operating
Officer.  He has served on the Board since 1985 and most recently served on the Nominating
& Corporate Governance Committee.  

In June 2005, Harve Cathey, the Company’s Vice President of Finance & CFO, announced his
intention to retire.  Mr. Cathey loyally served the Company for more than 37 years and
remained in his position until Richard L. Travis was named as his successor in November
2005.  Charles Ray, General Manager of our Ennis, TX facility, announced his retirement in
February 2006.  Mr. Ray held numerous management positions, including President,
throughout his 41 years with the Company.

Each of these men was integral in building Ennis into the company you see today.  We thank
them for their service and wish them the best as they enjoy their future endeavors. 

THE NEXT YEAR

Ennis will be into a new year by the time this report is available.  We hope to be able to report
our first quarter results by the Annual Shareholders Meeting in Midlothian, Texas on June 29,
2006.  Our goals for the next year will include:

• Additional printing acquisitions that fit our model.  
• The first studies of apparel acquisitions and development of a model for that business 

group as a potential acquirer.  
• Use our positive cash flow to continue our dividend policy, support both organic and 

acquisition growth, and pay down debt as quickly as financially prudent.  
• Exploit the new opportunities presented by our new products, markets and scale.  
• Installation of our ERP manufacturing systems into the Alstyle Apparel facilities. (They 

are already on our financial systems)  
• Continue our on-going study to improve the Alstyle competitive position in their 

manufacturing capacity. 

We thank you for your support as we move into our 98th year of business.  Ennis is a much
different company today.  As we near a hundred years in business, the company seems to be
getting younger in many ways.  We certainly have never in the history of Ennis enjoyed the
opportunities before us today.  Our management is committed to exploit these possibilities
for the advantage of all our stakeholders.  We hope you will continue to be a partner with us
towards these endeavors.

Keith S. Walters
Chairman, CEO and President

L E T T E R  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S
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Alstyle Apparel built its foundation in 1976 as a t-shirt importer for local screen printers.  After
becoming the nation’s largest distributor of Hanes and Fruit of the Loom products, Alstyle
began manufacturing their own line of t-shirts in 1990.  Alstyle’s product line has significantly
expanded and includes manufactured and sourced items.  Today Alstyle’s product line includes
t-shirts, fleece, polo shirts, outerwear and headwear.

The acquisition of Alstyle Apparel in November 2004 dramatically changed the make up of
Ennis.  The Anaheim, California based apparel manufacturer nearly doubled the sales revenue
and number of employees of the Company.  In addition to the California headquarters and
manufacturing facility, Alstyle has production facilities in Ensenada and Hermosillo, Mexico.
Product distribution centers include Anaheim, Los Angeles, Chicago, Philadelphia, Atlanta,
Dallas and Mississauga, Canada.

The size of the Apparel Group necessitated the Company’s decision to report and operate our
facilities into two divisions.  The newly formed Apparel Segment currently consists entirely of
Alstyle Apparel.  The Apparel Segment is led by recently appointed Vice President – Apparel
Segment, Todd Scarborough.  

IMPROVEMENTS ACROSS THE COMPANY

In midst of integration activities, Alstyle’s financial performance excelled. As a percent of
sales, gross profit increased significantly from 21.3% in fiscal year 2005 to 26.1% in fiscal year
2006. Profits for this segment were also strong on a percent of sales basis. In fiscal year 2005,
profits were 6.4% versus 12.6% for fiscal year 2006.

Over the past few years, product line expansion has proven to be a key area of growth for
Alstyle.  Several new items including sheer jersey t-shirts, yoga pants, shorts, and two new
headwear lines were added to Alstyle’s product mix last year.  These new products have
proven to be a popular addition to Alstyle’s existing product line, and have been well
supported by customers. Through these products, Alstyle has been able to expand beyond
traditional t-shirts and into additional profitable, high-demand products.  Several new colors
were also added to keep pace with trends in the apparel industry.  The addition of the AAA
Platinum t-shirt is representative of how Alstyle is closely following industry trends.  Our AAA
Platinum t-shirt is a softer material with a tear away tag that is especially convenient for
customers wishing to relabel the garment after purchase.

As we move into the future, the Apparel Segment has made increasing brand recognition of
our product lines a key priority.  Elevating the awareness of Alstyle’s brands within the
industry will assist in the aggressive pursuit of new customers. Effective trade advertising,
catalog design, and participation in high-profile industry tradeshows will continue to be
important strategies in accomplishing this objective. We have also placed emphasis on further
developing our web based ordering platform. Customers now have the ability to view
inventory levels online prior to purchasing our apparel products. Additionally, web based
orders have been fully integrated into our distribution system.

Another important change was the expansion of our distribution channel through multi-line
distributors. Leveraging this strategy, Alstyle was able to add distribution outlets and sales
channel support in Canada, and recently in England and New Zealand. In Canada, Alstyle
added distribution and sales outlets in the Provinces of British Columbia, Manitoba and

A P PA R E L  s e g m e n t

To d d  S c a r b o r o u g h
President - Alstyle Apparel
Vice President - Apparel Division
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Alberta. In England, the channel was expanded through 5 new sales offices and 1 distribution facility.
In New Zealand, 1 new distribution and sales facility has been added to market the Alstyle product line. 

The Apparel Segment is currently implementing Ennis’ ERP System (the System).  The migration of our
existing system to this new system is extremely important.  The System will give us the tools to
improve operations in several key areas, including improved cross-selling opportunities.  The System
will allow Alstyle to continue to grow sales while better understanding and reducing manufacturing and
distribution costs.  Careful management of costs within the manufacturing process is a core
competency of the Ennis management team. Alstyle has benefited from this expertise and is being
held to the same standards as all Ennis manufacturing facilities.  The integration and utilization of this
System will continue as our manufacturing and distribution centers begin to fully employ the tools of
the System.

Investments in improved manufacturing equipment have allowed the Apparel Segment to increase
production pounds in existing facilities while avoiding a corresponding increase in labor. During a
typical week of production, Alstyle manufactures over 1.6 million pounds of fabric and nearly 250,000
dozen t-shirts.  In addition to our internally manufactured products, Alstyle distributes thousands of
sourced products each day.  The sheer volume of apparel moving through our system illustrates the
importance of efficient manufacturing and an effective enterprise resource planning system.  The
current Ennis system will meet the needs of Alstyle and will allow us to identify potential efficiency
opportunities.

NEW PRODUCTS, FAMILIAR STANDARDS

Alstyle has entered into an agreement with Dunbrooke Apparel Corporation to become the exclusive
supplier of Dunbrooke and Reebok Promotional Apparel to the ASI (Advertising Specialty) market.  The
Dunbrooke and Reebok product lines will provide the company with 26 new apparel styles including
sport shirts, jackets, mock turtlenecks, wind shirts and the high-tech sports styling of Reebok’s Play
Dry™ moisture management apparel.  New corporate and golf apparel, jackets, outerwear and high
performance sports apparel is an exciting addition to Alstyle for the coming year.  The Dunbrooke
product line has been consistently awarded top honors in quality and style by apparel industry buyers.  

This diversification of products will provide the Apparel Segment with a more complete product
offering.  These new products are in high demand from traditional Alstyle and Ennis customers as well
as non-customers. Moving into the ASI market will create a bridge between Alstyle and the traditional
customer base of Ennis. A large percentage of Ennis customers sell corporate apparel and t shirts.
Expanding the Alstyle product line and entering the ASI market will provide Alstyle access to a large
population of distributors who are familiar and comfortable with Ennis. The promotional campaign for
these new products will begin with our summer 2006 catalog and fall 2006 tradeshow schedule.  The
penetration of previously underutilized ASI distributors and the “green grass” market of country clubs,
golf courses and other high end retail customers will be our focus for growth.  

The goal of the Apparel Segment is continuous improvement and efficiency in the manufacturing
arena.  We are increasing our speed to market and improving customer service.  Ennis’ manufacturing
expertise has been crucial in our cost reduction efforts and has given the Apparel Segment the
resources necessary to meet the guidelines for corporate governance.  Operating in the realm of a
publicly traded company was a new experience for Alstyle Apparel, but Ennis’ leadership and
management has allowed for our recent success.  The strength of our products and brand combined
with the hard work of our employees ensure that the Apparel Segment will be in a strong position to
continue its positive contribution to the Company. 

A P PA R E L  s e g m e n t
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A UNIFIED PRINT GROUP

In fiscal year 2006 Ennis strategically realigned its management structure to better support its
business objectives.  Ennis previously segmented its businesses into three groups: the
Forms, Financial and Promotional Solutions Groups. The Company is now being operated as
two distinct divisions, the Print Segment and the Apparel Segment.  This realignment of
resources will increase the cross-selling opportunities within the Print Segment as a single
management team will be focused on this manufacturing sector.  In the future, the financial
and operational reporting will be based upon these two segments.  

The Print Segment now includes all Ennis facilities and brands that were formerly part of the
three printing groups.  These brand names include 360˚ Custom Labels, Adams McClure,
Admore, Calibrated Forms, ColorWorx, GenForms, General Financial Supply, Northstar,
Specialized Printed Forms (new in FY 2007), Star Award Ribbon, TBF (new in FY 2006) and
Witt Printing.  The Printing Segment operates 39 facilities in 15 states throughout the United
States and serves over 40,000 distributors with a very diverse product offering. 

The Print Segment contains our newest acquisitions and oldest facilities with nearly a century
of manufacturing experience and a commitment to selling through distributors.  Our Print
Segment continues to successfully expand each year in a mature industry.  Ennis is proud of
the fact that this segment continues to have solid and stable profit margins midst a difficult
operating environment.

FOCUSING THE SALES EFFORT

Customers continue to expand their relationship with Ennis each year to include products
from every aspect of the Print Segment.  The Ennis name has now become one of the most
widely recognized brand in the independent printing market.  According to leading trade
publications, Ennis has become the largest printing company in the United States serving
distributors and independent printers (wholesale market) with broad geographic presence and
product breadth.  Ennis has also maintained a regional presence that allows the Company to
provide local distributors with the product diversity, customer service and values necessary
to make them successful.

Our customers understand that Ennis provides the capabilities to service larger companies
previously supplied by the major direct forms manufacturers.  Leveraging this opportunity will
be a key strategic focus moving forward as we partner with some of the largest distributors
to capture these national accounts.  Our expanded product line and nationwide manufacturing
capabilities will provide both Ennis and our customers an opportunity to profitably grow
revenues as we pursue this new strategy.

The attitude toward sales at Ennis has changed as we will begin to aggressively pursue a
renewed focus on establishing strong relationships within the distributor community.  Part of
this change involves realigning preexisting resources to create a centralized sales team
focused on promoting and selling all products within the Print Segment.  Ennis will continue
to forge alliances with distributor organizations to provide our broad product lines to their
sales affiliates throughout the United States.

M i ch a e l  D .  M a g i l l
Executive Vice President 
and Treasurer
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PERFORMANCE AND PROFITABILITY

The Print Segment of Ennis had a challenging year with integration and acquisition activities.
One of the challenges we faced was the consolidation of the Edison, New Jersey and
Medfield, Massachusetts facilities into our other east coast facilities.  This decision was made
once it was determined that the prospects for profitability within these facilities was very low.

Ennis also re-entered the acquisition environment after a hiatus of 12 months from our last
addition of Royal Business Forms in November of 2004.  The Company acquired Tennessee
Business Forms (“TBF”) in December 2005.  TBF was a smaller acquisition, but its product
mix and geographic location made it attractive.  Bob Boldig, the former owner of TBF, will
continue to run the facility.  The March 2006 acquisition of Specialized Printed Forms
(“Specialized”) in Caledonia, New York will also expand our value-added product mix of
mailers, integrated labels and jumbo rolls.  Specialized will create a significant presence in the
Northeast for Ennis. Bob McAleavey, the former owner, will continue to run the operation as
General Manager.

The former groups in the Print Segment (Forms, Promotional and Financial) performed well in
fiscal 2006 as viewed within our industry.  The Financial Group continued to make inroads into
the financial institution market through the signing of several contracts with large financial
institutions involved in our loan agreement.  The distributor based financial forms business has
improved substantially under the General Financial Supply brand as sales and profits
increased year over year. The facilities formerly comprising the Forms Group had slight sales
and profits growth even after eliminating the effect of fiscal year 2005 acquisitions.  In an
industry where most forms work is declining, this was quite an accomplishment.   One of the
facilities in the Promotional Group struggled with the impact of changing specifications and
delivery dates on a sizeable job for a large customer last year.  While the Company met the
customer’s needs, we were unable to recover the increase in costs.  The impact of this
transaction severely reduced the profitability of this printing facility and overshadowed an
otherwise fine performance by the other facilities in the Promotional Group.

THE FUTURE OF THE PRINT SEGMENT

Our recent acquisitions provide unique and growing product lines for Ennis as well as our
customers.  TBF and Specialized are well respected suppliers to the wholesale industry and
great additions to Ennis.  These facilities will strengthen our existing product offering as we
continue to meet the needs of customers.  Our acquisition strategy continues to focus on
printing manufacturers that increase our footprint of products or provide access into a regional
market that is not fully served by existing Ennis facilities.

The upcoming year will be a time of growth and change for the Print Segment of Ennis.
Management and employees will continue to maximize profits for our shareholders by
working to achieve increased sales, develop new products, identify profitable acquisitions,
while improving operational efficiencies.
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The following table sets forth selected financial data regarding our results of operations and financial position as
of and for each of the years in the five-year period ended February 28, 2006, and were derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements.  Our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto as of February 28,
2006 and 2005, and for the years ended February 28, 2006, February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004, and the
reports of Grant Thornton LLP and Ernst & Young LLP thereon, are included in this Annual Report (Report).  The
selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in
this Report.

S E L E C T E D  F I N A N C I A L  D ATA

Fiscal Years Ended 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Operating results:
Net sales $ 559,397 $ 365,353 $ 259,360 $ 240,757 $ 236,923
Gross profit  142,090 90,757 68,548 63,272 64,988
SG&A expenses 70,060 51,159 38,521 37,559 39,000
Net earnings 40,537 22,959 17,951 15,247 14,966

Earnings and dividends per share:
Basic $ 1.59 $ 1.21 $ 1.10 $ .94 $ .92
Diluted 1.58 1.19 1.08 .93 .92
Dividends .62 .62 .62 .62 .62

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 25,453 18,936 16,358 16,285 16,272
Diluted 25,728 19,260 16,602 16,478 16,319

Financial Position:
Working capital $ 94,494 $ 70,247 $ 38,205 $ 39,718 $ 38,680
Current assets 158,455 151,630 63,605 65,012 62,646
Total assets 494,401 497,246 154,043 152,537 139,034
Current liabilities 63,961 81,383 25,400 25,294 23,966
Long-term debt 102,916 112,342 7,800 18,135 9,170
Total liabilities 197,066 225,515 43,461 55,634 42,999
Equity 297,335 271,731 110,582 96,903 96,035

Current ratio 2.48 to 1.0 1.86 to 1.0 2.50 to 1.0 2.57 to 1.0 2.61 to 1.0
Long-term debt to equity .35 to 1.0 .41 to 1.0 .07 to 1.0 .19 to 1.0 .10 to 1.0
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OVERVIEW

Ennis, Inc. (formerly Ennis Business Forms, Inc.) was organized under the laws of Texas in 1909.  Ennis, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Company,” “Registrant,” “Ennis,” or “we,” “us,” or “our”) prints and
constructs a broad line of business forms and other business products and also manufactures a line of active-
wear for distribution throughout North America.  Distribution of business products and forms throughout the
United States and Canada is primarily through independent dealers, and with respect to our active-wear
products, through sales representatives.  This distributor channel encompasses print distributors, stationers,
quick printers, computer software developers, active-wear wholesalers, screen printers and advertising
agencies, among others.

On January 3, 2006, the Company purchased the outstanding stock of Tennessee Business Forms, Inc. (“TBF”),
a privately held company located in Tullahoma, Tennessee, as well as the associated land and buildings from a
partnership which leased the facility to TBF.  The purchase price of this transaction was $1.2 million.  TBF had
sales of $2.2 million for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2005.  The acquisition of TBF continues
the Ennis strategy of growth through acquisition of complimentary manufactured products to further service our
existing customer base. The acquisition will add additional short-run print products and solutions as well as
integrated labels and form/label combinations sold through the indirect sales (distributorship) marketplace.

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005, the Company acquired Crabar/GBF, Inc. (“Crabar/GBF”) and
Royal Business Forms, Inc. (“Royal”) and acquired by merger Centrum Acquisition, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiary, which did business under the name of Alstyle Apparel (“Alstyle”).  Alstyle, an Anaheim, California
based company, had approximately $200 million in annual revenues prior to the acquisition and 3,500 employees
in North America.  Alstyle shareholders received 8,803,583 shares, valued at approximately $145,523,000, and
$2,889,000 in cash.  Debt of approximately $98,074,000 was assumed by the Company.  The Company also
entered into a new $150 million financing facility with LaSalle Bank, N.A. providing a $150 million credit facility
in conjunction with the Alstyle acquisition.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” of this Report for further
discussion on these transactions.  Crabar/GBF was a privately owned business forms manufacturer with $69
million in revenues in its fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.  The purchase price of this transaction was
approximately $18 million, including assumed debt (approximately $11.5 million), and the remainder in cash.  The
transaction closed as of June 30, 2004.  On November 1, 2004, the Company acquired Royal, an Arlington, Texas
based manufacturer of business forms for $3.7 million in Ennis stock (approximately 178,000 shares of treasury
stock were issued in this transaction).  Royal had revenues of $12.1 million in its most recent fiscal year prior to
the acquisition.

BUSINESS SEGMENT OVERVIEW

The Company operates in two business segments, the Print Segment and the Apparel Segment.  The following
is a description of each segment and the business groups associated with each.

Print Segment

The Print Segment, which represented 57% of the Company’s consolidated sales for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2006, consisted of three operating groups - the Forms Solutions Group, the Promotional Solutions
Group and the Financial Solutions Group.  The print market continues to evolve due to technology improvements,
consolidations, etc.  Plants that once produced only standard form products, or were niche product printers, now
produce promotional products, labels, etc. and provide other value-add services.  Our plants have seen the same
degree of evolution over the past several years, which has resulted in them losing, to some degree, their

O v e r v i e w    13
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product/group specific identity.  We see this as a continuing evolution in the market, and as such, we now
consider it prudent to manage/monitor and report these plants at the Print Segment level and not at the Group
level.  For the purposes of this Report, we will continue to discuss the various groups and will disclose group
financial data in Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, as an accommodation to our readers;
however, you are cautioned about drawing any inferences or conclusions with respect to any such financial data,
due to the factors indicated above.  As such, the Company will only be discussing the operating results of the
Print Segment in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of
this Report. 

Forms Solutions Group – The Forms Solutions Group operates through 20 manufacturing locations throughout
the United States.  The Forms Solutions Group sells through approximately 40,000 private printers and
independent distributors and therefore their sales reflect a smaller percentage of selling expense than would
exist in companies who market directly to the end user.  The products sold include snap sets, continuous forms,
laser cut sheets, tags, labels, integrated products, jumbo rolls and pressure sensitive products in short, medium
and long runs.  The Group sells under the Ennis, Royal, TBF/Avant-Garde, 360º Custom Labels, Witt Printing and
Calibrated Forms brand names.

Promotional Solutions Group – The Promotional Solutions Group operates eight facilities in four states. 
The group operates under the Adams-McClure brand (which provides Point of Purchase advertising for large
franchise and fast food chains as well as kitting and fulfillment); the Admore brand (which provides presentation
folders and document folders); Ennis Tag & Label (which provides tags and labels, promotional products and
advertising concept products) and GenForms (which provides short-run and long-run label production).  The
Adams-McClure sales are generally provided through advertising agencies.  Ennis Tag & Label, Admore and Gen
Forms facilities sell their products through independent distributors.

Financial Solutions Group – The Financial Solutions Group operates in four facilities located in three 
states.  The Financial Group (Northstar and GFS) sells directly to a small number of direct customers, and
predominately through distributors.  Northstar has continued its focus with large banking organizations on a
direct basis (where a distributor is not acceptable or available to the end-user) and has acquired several of the
top 100 banks in the United States as customers and is actively working on other large banks within the top 100
tier of banks in the United States.

Approximately 98% of the business products manufactured by the Print Segment are custom and semi-custom,
constructed in a wide variety of sizes, colors, number of parts and quantities on an individual job basis depending
upon the customers’ specifications.  The Print Segment operates thirty two manufacturing locations in the
United States of America (USA) in 15 strategically located domestic states, providing the Ennis dealer a national
network for meeting users’ demands for hand or machine written records and documents.

While it is not possible, because of the lack of adequate statistical information, to determine Ennis’ share of the
total business products market, management believes Ennis is one of the largest producers of business forms
in the United States distributing primarily through independent dealers, and that its business forms offering is
more diversified than that of most companies in the business forms industry.

The printing industry generally sells its products in two ways.  One market direction is to sell predominately to
end users, and is dominated by a few large manufacturers, such as Moore Wallace (a subsidiary of R.R.
Donnelly), Standard Register, and Cenveo.  The other market direction, which the Company primarily serves,
sells forms and other business products through a variety of independent distributors and distributor groups.
The Company believes it is one of the largest forms companies that serve this segment of the market.  There
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are a number of competitors that operate in this segment, ranging in size from single employee-owner
operations to multi-plant organizations, such as Cenveo and their Quality Park brand.  The Company’s strategic
locations and buying power permit Ennis to compete on a favorable basis within the distributor market on
competitive factors, such as service, quality and price.  

Distribution of business forms and other business products throughout the United States is primarily through
independent dealers, including business forms distributors, stationers, printers, computer software developers,
advertising agencies, etc.  The Promotional and Financial Solutions Groups are dependent upon certain major
customers.  The loss of such customers could have a material adverse effect on the segment.  While, no single
customer accounts for as much as ten percent of this Segment’s consolidated net sales, two customers within
the Financial Solutions Group accounted for 20.4%, 21.0% and 19.4% of that Group’s consolidated sales for
fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Raw materials of the Printing Segment principally consist of a wide variety of weights, widths, colors, sizes and
qualities of paper for business products purchased from a number of major suppliers at prevailing 
market prices.  

Business products usage in the printing industry is generally not seasonal.  General economic conditions and
contraction of traditional business forms industry are the predominant factor, in quarterly volume fluctuations.  

Apparel Segment

The Apparel Segment, which consists of our Apparel Solutions Group, represented 43% of the Company’s
consolidated sales for the fiscal year ending February 28, 2006.  This Group operates under the name of 
Alstyle Apparel (“Alstyle”) and has six manufacturing facilities located in California and Mexico.  Alstyle 
markets high quality knit basic active-wear (t-shirts, tank tops and fleece) across all market segments.
Approximately 88% of Alstyle’s revenues are derived from t-shirt sales, and 94% of those are domestic sales.
Alstyle’s branded product lines are AAA, Gaziani, Diamond Star, Murina, A Classic, Tennessee River, Drive and
Hyland Headware.

Alstyle is headquartered in Anaheim, California, where they knit domestic cotton yarn and some polyester fibers
into tubular material. The material is then dyed at that facility and then shipped to its plants in Ensenada or
Hermosillo, Mexico, where it is cut and sewn into finished goods. Alstyle also ships a small amount of their dyed
and cut product to El Salvador and Costa Rica for sewing. After sewing and packaging is completed, product is
shipped to one of Alstyle’s seven distribution centers located across the United States and in Canada. 

Alstyle utilizes a customer-focused internal sales team comprised of 19 sales representatives assigned to
specific geographic territories in the United States and Canada. Sales representatives are allocated performance
objectives for their respective territories and are provided financial incentives for achievement of their target
objectives.  Sales representatives are responsible for developing business with large accounts and spend
approximately half their time in the field. 

Alstyle employs a staff of customer service representatives that handle call-in orders from smaller customers.
Sales personnel sell directly to Alstyle’s customer base, which consists primarily of screen printers,
embellishers, retailers and mass marketers. 
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A majority of Alstyle’s sales are related to direct customer, branded products and the remainder relate to private
label and re-label programs. Generally, sales to screen printers and mass marketers are driven by the availability
of competitive products and price considerations, while sales in the private label business are characterized by
slightly higher customer loyalty.

Alstyle’s most popular styles are produced based on forecasts to permit quick shipment and to level production
schedules. Alstyle offers same-day shipping and uses third party carriers to ship products to its customers. 

Alstyle’s sales are seasonal, with sales in the first and second quarters generally being the highest. The general
apparel industry is characterized by rapid shifts in fashion, consumer demand and competitive pressures,
resulting in both price and demand volatility. However, the imprinted active-wear market that Alstyle sells to is
“event” driven. Blank t-shirts can be thought of as “walking billboards” promoting movies, concerts, sports
teams and “image” brands. Still, the demand for any particular product varies from time to time based largely
upon changes in consumer preferences and general economic conditions affecting the apparel industry.

The products of the Apparel Segment are standardized shirts manufactured in a variety of sizes and colors. The
Apparel Segment operates six manufacturing facilities, one in the USA and five in Mexico.  

The Apparel industry is comprised of numerous companies who manufacture and sell a wide range of products.
Alstyle is primarily involved in the active-wear and produces t-shirts, fleece items, and outsources such products
as hats, shorts, pants and other such active-wear apparel from China, Thailand, Pakistan, India, Indonesia,
Russia, and other foreign sources to sell to its customers through its sales representatives.  Its primary
competitors are Delta Apparel (“Delta”), Russell, Hanes and Gildan active-wear (“Gildan”).  While it is not
possible to calculate precisely, based on public information available, management believes that Alstyle is one
of the top three providers of blank t-shirts in North America.  Alstyle competes with many branded and private
label manufacturers of knit apparel in the United States and Canada, some of which are larger in size and have
greater financial resources than Alstyle.  Alstyle competes on the basis of price, quality, service and delivery.
Alstyle’s strategy is to provide the best value to its customers by delivering a consistent, high-quality product at
a competitive price.  Alstyle’s competitive disadvantage is that its brand name, Alstyle Apparel, is not as well
known as the brand names of its largest competitors, such as Gildan, Delta, Hanes and Russell.

No single customer accounts for as much as ten percent of consolidated net sales.  Distribution of the Apparel
Segment’s products is through Alstyle’s own staff of sales representatives selling to distributors who resell to
retailers, or directly to screen printers, embellishers, retailers and mass marketers. 

Raw materials of the Apparel Segment principally consist of cotton and polyester yarn purchased from a number
of major suppliers at prevailing market prices, although we purchase more than 50% of our cotton and yarn from
one supplier.  Reference is made in “Risk Factors” of this Report.

Intellectual Property

We market our products under a number of trademarks and tradenames.  We have registered trademarks in the
United States for Ennis, A Alstyle Apparel, AA Alstyle Apparel & active-wear, AAA Alstyle Apparel & active-wear,
American Diamond, Classic by Alstyle Apparel, Diamond Star, Executive by Alstyle, Gaziani, Gaziani Fashions,
Hyland, Hyland Headwear by Alstyle, Murina, Tennessee River, 360º Custom Labels, Admore,
CashManagementSupply.com, Securestar, Northstar, MICRLink, MICR Connection, Ennisstores.com, General
Financial Supply, Calibrated, Witt Printing, GenForms, Royal, Crabar/GBF, Adams McClure, Advertising Concepts,
ColorWorx, Star Award Ribbon and variations of these brands as well as other trademarks.  We have similar



F I N A N C I A L  D ATA

trademark registrations internationally.  The protection of our trademarks is important to our business.  We
believe that our registered and common law trademarks have significant value and these trademarks are
instrumental to our ability to create and sustain demand for our products.

Backlog

At February 28, 2006, the Company’s backlog of orders believed to be firm was approximately $20,468,000 as
compared to approximately $23,218,000 at February 28, 2005.  

Research and Development

While the Company continuously looks for new products to sell through its distribution channel, there have been
no material amounts spent on research and development in the fiscal year ended February 28, 2006.

Environment

We do not believe that our compliance with federal, state or local statutes or regulations relating to the
protection of the environment has any material effect upon capital expenditures, earnings or our competitive
position.  Our manufacturing processes do not emit substantial foreign substances into the environment.

Employees

At February 28, 2006, the Company had approximately 5,950 employees.  Approximately 2,800 of the
employees are in Mexico and approximately 30 employees are in Canada. Of the USA employees, approximately
440 were represented by three unions, under seven separate contracts expiring at various times.  Of the
employees in Mexico, two unions represent substantially all employees with contracts expiring at various times.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statements

Certain statements in this Report, and in particular, statements found in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  We believe these forward-looking statements are based
upon reasonable assumptions within the bounds of our knowledge of Ennis.  All such statements involve risks
and uncertainties, and as a result, actual results could differ materially from those projected, anticipated or
implied by these statements.  Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, including but
not limited to, general economic, business and labor conditions; the ability to implement our strategic initiatives;
the ability to be profitable on a consistent basis; dependence on sales that are not subject to long-term
contracts; dependence on suppliers; the ability to recover the rising cost of key raw materials in markets that
are highly price competitive; the ability to meet customer demand for additional value-added products and
services; the ability to timely or adequately respond to technological changes in the industry; the impact of the
Internet and other electronic media on the demand for forms and printed materials; postage rates; the ability to
manage operating expenses; the ability to manage financing costs and interest rate risk; a decline in business
volume and profitability could result in an impairment of goodwill; the ability to retain key management
personnel; the ability to identify, manage or integrate future acquisitions; the costs associated with and the
outcome of outstanding and future litigation; and changes in government regulations. 

You should carefully consider these risks, as well as other information included in our Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  In view of such uncertainties and risk, investors
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should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements since such statements speak only as of the
date when made.  We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital – The increase in our working capital during the twelve months ended February 28, 2006 was
primarily due to increased cash flows from operations which were a result of our higher sales volumes.  The
increased sales volume related principally to the acquisitions completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2005.  The aforementioned increase was partially offset by cash used for capital expenditures, to reduce
outstanding debt and to pay dividends.  Our current ratio, calculated by dividing our current assets by our current
liabilities, increased from 1.9-to-1.0 at February 28, 2005 to 2.5-to-1.0 at February 28, 2006.

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as time
deposits held at major banks, commercial paper, United States government agency discount notes, money
market mutual funds and other money market securities with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Cash flows from operating activities – Cash flows from our operating activities increased in fiscal year ended
February 28, 2006 primarily due to our higher net income, which resulted from our higher sales volume during
the fiscal year.  The cash flow generated by our higher net income was supplemented by improved cash
collections on our receivables, which was partially offset by increases in our inventories and reductions in our
payables and accrued liabilities.

The increase in our inventories during the third and fourth quarters is a result of our plan to build our Apparel
Solutions Group inventories during this period.  Traditionally, the apparel business’ busiest quarters are our first
and second quarters and their slowest are our third and fourth quarters.  Consequently, to meet the anticipated
demand during the first and second quarters, our Apparel Solutions Group is required to build inventories during
the third and fourth quarters.  
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February 28, February 28,
(dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 Change

Working Capital $ 94,494 $ 70,247 34.5%

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,860 $ 10,694 29.6%

Twelve months ended February 28,
(dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 Change

Cash provided by operating activities $ 47,427 $ 20,046 136.6%

Cash used for investing activities $ (9,942) $ (121,091) -91.9%

Cash (used for) provided by financing activities $ (34,895) $ 96,672 -136.1%
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Cash flows from investing activities – Cash used for investing activities decreased primarily due to a reduction
in our acquisition activity during this period compared to the same period last year.

Cash flows from financing activities – The changes in cash flows from financing activities primarily relate to
payment of dividends, as well as borrowings and payments under our debt obligations.  Net cash used for
financing activities during the current period related primarily to payments on debt obligations and quarterly 
cash dividends.

Credit Facility – On March 31, 2006, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with a group
of lenders led by LaSalle Bank N.A. (the “Amended Credit Facility”).  The Amended Credit Facility provides us
access to $150 million in revolving credit and matures on March 31, 2010.  The facility bears interest at the rate
of London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus .50% to 1.50% (a reduction of 75 basis points from the original
facility), depending on our total funded debt to EBITDA ratio, as defined.  The Amended Credit Facility is secured
by substantially all of our personal and investment property.  While the Amended Credit Facility still maintains
certain financial covenants, restrictions on capital expenditures, acquisitions, asset dispositions and additional
debt, and other customary covenants, these covenants/restrictions have been eased significantly from our
original credit facility.

As of February 28, 2006, the Company was operating under the original credit facility dated November 2004,
which matured in November 2009 (the “Original Facility”).  The Original Facility was a $150 million combined
revolver and term facility ($100 million - revolver and $50 million - term).  As of February 28, 2006, we had $62.5
million of borrowings under the revolver and $13.2 million outstanding under letter of credit arrangements,
leaving us availability of approximately $24.3 million. The term facility required quarterly payments of $2.5
million, and $40 million was outstanding as of February 28, 2006.  The Original Facility was secured by
substantially all of our personal and investment property and bore interest at a floating rate of LIBOR plus a
spread dependent upon the Company’s total funded debt level to cash flows as defined.  The rate in effect at
February 28, 2006 was 5.82%.  The Original Facility contained financial covenants, restrictions on capital
expenditures, acquisitions, asset dispositions, and additional debt, as well as other customary covenants.  

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2006, the Company had drawn $9 million from and repaid $10 million
on the revolving credit facility, repaid $10 million on the term debt and approximately $9 million on other debt.
It is anticipated that the available line of credit is sufficient to cover, should it be required, working capital
requirements for our foreseeable future.

As previously reported, Alstyle continues to sell substantially all of its accounts receivable to factors based upon
agreements with various financial institutions.  We plan to continue with plans to fund these receivables through
the existing bank line or from working capital generated by Alstyle over the next twelve to eighteen months.  

Pension - We are required to make contributions to our defined benefit pension plan.  These contributions are
required under the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Pension Plan Income Security
Act (ERISA).  We anticipate that we will contribute from $2.0 million to $3.0 million during our current fiscal year.
We made pension contributions of approximately $2.0 million and $2.9 million for fiscal years ended 2006 and
2005, respectively.  

Inventories - We believe our current inventory levels are sufficient to satisfy our customer demands and we
anticipate having adequate sources of raw materials to meet future business requirements.  The previously
reported long-term contracts that govern prices but do not require minimum volume with paper and yarn
suppliers continue to be in effect.  
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Capital Expenditures - In March 2005, we acquired ownership of certain assets, which had been held by Alstyle
under operating leases.  Including these assets, our capital expenditures for the year were approximately $9
million.  We would expect our capital expenditures during the next fiscal year to be more in-line with our
historical levels of between $5.0 million to $7.0 million and would expect to fund these expenditures through
existing cash flows.  We would expect to be able to generate sufficient cash flows from our operating activities
to more than cover our operating and other capital requirements for our foreseeable future.

Contractual Obligations & Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements – The following table aggregates our expected
contractual obligations and commitments subsequent to fiscal year ended 2006.  We had no off-balance sheet
arrangements in place as of February 28, 2006.

RESULTS OF OPERATION – CONSOLIDATED

Net Sales – Our net sales increased by approximately $194.0 million, or 53.1%, from $365.4 million for fiscal
year 2005 to $559.4 million for fiscal 2006.  Our increase in sales related primarily to the additional sales
associated with our Apparel Segment acquisition of Alstyle Apparel completed last year, as this acquisition
provided $181.9 million of the current year increase, or 94%.  The remaining increase related principally to our
Print Segment’s acquisitions of Royal and Crabar/GBF, which accounted for an additional $8.0 million and $4.0
million of our current year’s increase in sales, respectively.

Our net sales for fiscal year 2005 increased $106.0 million, or 40.9% from approximately $259.4 million for fiscal
year 2004 to $365.4 million for fiscal 2005.  Our increase in sales, during the period, related primarily to the
impact of the acquisitions completed during the year.  Crabar/GBF, which was acquired on June 30, 2004,
accounted for approximately $41.2 million of this increase.  Royal and Alstyle Apparel, which were acquired 
in November 2004, accounted for approximately $4.0 million and $56.0 million of the fiscal year 2005 
increase, respectively.  

Cost of Goods Sold – Our cost of goods sold for fiscal year 2006 was $417.3 million compared to $274.6 million
for the fiscal 2005.  As a percentage of sales, our cost of goods sold was 74.6% and 75.2% for fiscal years 2006
and 2005, respectively.  The increase in our cost of goods sold, on a dollar-basis, related primarily to our

Payments due by fiscal period 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 and
(in thousands) thereafter

Revolving credit facility $         -- $       -- $       -- $       -- $ 102,500

Other debt 11,026 274 -- -- --

Capital lease obligations 594 118 24 -- --

Operating lease obligations 7,366 6,323 4,810 1,680 1,388

Letters of credit (1) 3,181 -- -- -- --

Totals $ 22,167 $ 6,715 $ 4,834 $ 1,680 $ 103,888

(1) Excludes approximately $10.0 million in stand-by letters of credit issued to secure an outstanding debt obligation in the same
amount, as this amount has been included in other debt in the above schedule.
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increased sales volume.  The decrease in our cost of goods sold, on a percentage of sales basis, related primarily
to a reduction in our cost of sales associated with our Apparel Segment, which is the direct result of various
cost saving programs implemented by the Company during the current year.  As a result, our gross profit margin
as a percentage-of-sales increased from 24.8% for fiscal 2005 to 25.4% for fiscal 2006.

Our cost of goods sold for fiscal year 2004 was approximately $190.8 million, or 73.6% of sales, compared to
$274.6 million, or 75.2% of sales for fiscal year 2005.  The increase in our cost of sales, on a dollar-basis and a
percentage of sales basis, related to the acquisitions completed during fiscal year 2005.  Our acquisitions,
principally Alstyle and Crabar/GBF, had margins initially that were quite a bit lower than our historical print plant
margins.  Excluding the acquisitions, our cost of goods sold as a percentage sales remained relatively
unchanged.  As a result, our gross profit margins decreased from 26.4% in fiscal year 2004 to 24.8% in fiscal
year 2005.

Selling, general & administrative expenses – For fiscal year 2006, our selling, general and administrative
expenses increased approximately $18.9 million, or 36.9% from $51.2 million for fiscal year 2005 to $70.1 million
for fiscal 2006.  While up on a dollar-basis, due to our acquisitions in fiscal year 2005, these expenses on a
percentage of sales basis decreased from 14.0% in fiscal year 2005 to 12.5% in fiscal year 2006.  This decrease
results primarily from our continued emphasis on reducing redundant expenses associated with our acquisitions
and general economies of scale associated with our increased revenues.  

Our selling, general and administrative expenses increased approximately $12.7 million, or 33.0% from $38.5
million in fiscal year 2004 to $51.2 million in fiscal year 2005.  While up on a dollar-basis, due to the acquisitions
completed during the year, the increased costs of compliance with SEC and NYSE mandates and the additional
costs associated with the implementation of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (approximately $1.5
million), on a percentage of sales basis these expenses decreased from 14.8% in fiscal year 2004 to 14.0% in
fiscal year 2005.

Earnings from operations – As a result of the above factors, our earnings from operations increased by
approximately $32.4 million, or 81.8%, from operational earnings of $39.6 million in fiscal 2005 to operational
earnings of $72.0 million in fiscal 2006.  As a percentage of sales, our operational earnings increased from
10.8% in fiscal 2005 to 12.9% in fiscal 2006.

Our operational earnings for fiscal year 2005 increased by approximately $9.6 million, or 32.0% from earnings
of $30.0 million in fiscal year 2004 to $39.6 million in fiscal 2005.  As a percentage of sales, our operational
earnings decreased from 11.6% in fiscal 2004 to 10.8% in fiscal 2005, which related principally to our decreased
operational margins during fiscal year 2005 due to our acquisitions.

Other income and expense – For fiscal year 2005 and 2006, our other income and expense changed
approximately $6.0 million, from $2.1 million to $8.1 million, respectively.  The increase during the year related
primarily to increased interest expense which increased from $2.8 million in fiscal year 2005 to approximately
$8.3 million in fiscal year 2006.  The increased interest expense during fiscal 2006 related primarily to the
increased level of outstanding debt during the current year which is directly related to our acquisition of
Crabar/GBF and Alstyle Apparel in June 2004 and November 2004, respectively.

Other income and expense increased by approximately $1.0 million, from $1.1 million in fiscal 2004 to $2.1
million in fiscal 2005.  The increase in other income and expenses during fiscal year 2005 related primarily to an
increase in our interest expense during fiscal 2005, which increased by approximately $1.9 million.  This was
offset by an increase in our other income of approximately $.9 million, which related primarily to gains from the
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sale of equipment in conjunction with the closing of the Connolly Tool plant.  The increase in our interest expense
during the year resulted from the increase in our outstanding debt during the period relating to our Crabar/GBF
and Alstyle Apparel acquisitions.

Provision for income taxes – Our effective tax rates for fiscal years 2006 and 2005 were 36.6% and 38.7%,
respectively.  The decrease in our effective tax rate during the current year over the comparable prior year related
primarily to an increase in our foreign income tax credit and the American Jobs Creation Act credit.   

Our effective tax rate for fiscal year 2004 was 37.9% versus 38.7% in fiscal year 2005.  The increase in our
effective tax rate for fiscal year 2005 related primarily to the increased state income taxes burden associated
with the fiscal year 2005 acquisitions of Crabar/GBF and Alstyle Apparel.   

Net earnings – As a result of the above factors, our net earnings increased by approximately $17.5 million, or
76.1%, from earnings of $23.0 million, or 6.3% of sales in fiscal 2005, to $40.5 million, or 7.2% of sales in fiscal
year 2006.  Basic earnings per share increased from earnings of $1.21 per share to $1.59 per share in fiscal years
2005 and 2006, respectively.  Diluted earnings per share increased from earnings of $1.19 per share to $1.58 per
share in fiscal years 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Our net earnings for fiscal year 2005 increased by approximately $5.0 million, or 27.8%, from earnings of $18.0
million, or 6.9% of sales in fiscal year 2004, to $23.0 million, or 6.3% in fiscal year 2005.  Basic earnings per
share increased from earnings of $1.10 per share to $1.21 per share in fiscal years 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Diluted earnings per share increased from earnings of $1.08 per share to $1.19 per share in fiscal years 2004 and
2005, respectively.

RESULTS OF OPERATION – SEGMENTS

Print Segment – Our net sales for the Print Segment were approximately $321.4 million for fiscal year 2006
compared to approximately $309.3 million for fiscal year 2005, or an increase of $12.1 million, or 3.9%.  Net sales
for fiscal year 2005 increased approximately $49.9 million or 19.2% over fiscal year 2004 Print Segment sales of
approximately $259.4 million.  The increase in our fiscal year 2005 and 2006 Print Solutions Group sales related
principally to our acquisition of Crabar/GBF and Royal in June 2004 and November 2004, respectively, which
accounted for $40.4 million and $11.9 million of this Segment’s fiscal year 2005 and 2006 sales’ increases,
respectively.  In addition, fiscal year 2005 sales were impacted by the addition of several large accounts added
during the year in our Promotional Solutions Group.  The sales in the Print Solutions Group during fiscal year 2006
were negatively impacted by the closing of our Edison and Medfield plants by approximately $3.6 million.  While
the closing of these plants negatively impacted our sales during the current period, it has a positive impact of
our operational results for the period. 

Fiscal year ending 2006 2005 2004
(Revenue by segment)

Print $ 321,410 $ 309,308 $ 259,360
Apparel 237,987 56,045 --
Total $ 559,397 $ 365,353 $ 259,360
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Apparel Segment – Our fiscal 2006 net sales were approximately $238.0 million compared to approximately
$56.0 million for fiscal 2005.  The Apparel Segment resulted from the acquisition of Alstyle Apparel on November
19, 2004, and as such, the Apparel Segment was not included in our fiscal year 2004 results and was included
for approximately a quarter in our fiscal year 2005 results.  The increase in sales during the current year over fiscal
2005 of approximately $182.0 million represents approximately 94% of our consolidated sales increase for fiscal
2006.  Annualizing this Segment’s fiscal year 2005 revenues would arrive at a comparable full-year sales figure
of approximately $202.5 million, which would correlate in a full year-over-year sales increase of approximately
$35.5 million, or 17.5%.  However, it should be noted that, historically, our first and second quarters have been
the Segment’s highest revenue quarters, and conversely, our third and fourth quarters have been this group’s
lowest quarters.  As prior year comparable information is not meaningful, given that Alstyle was acquired by us
on November 19, 2004, readers are encouraged to review the financial information provided in the Form S-4/A
filed October 4, 2004 to evaluate this Segment’s performance.

Print Segment – Our Print Segment’s gross profit increased approximately $1.3 million, or 1.7% and
approximately $10.0 million, or 14.5%, for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively.  As a percentage of sales,
our gross profit was 24.8%, 25.4% and 26.4% for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Our gross
profit during the current year was impacted by the decrease in the earnings at our Adams McClure facility, which
related primarily to operational performance issues encountered by them in executing a large contract.  Without
these operational issues, management estimates that this Segment’s gross profit would have been
approximately 25.9%.  As previously reported, management has evaluated the cause of the operational
problems encountered and has implemented changes in both personnel and processes.  Our gross profit during
fiscal year 2005 was impacted by the acquisitions of the Crabar/GBF and Royal plants, whose operational
performance at the time of acquisition was significantly below the average operational performance levels at our
existing plants.  As a result, two of the Crabar/GBF plants (Edison and Medfield) were closed during fiscal year
2006.  Due to cost savings associated with various programs implemented by us during fiscal year 2006, Royal’s
gross profit increased from 18.6% for fiscal year 2005 to 24.2% for fiscal year 2006. 

Apparel Segment – Our Apparel Segment’s gross profit margin increased approximately $50.0 million, from
$12.2 million for fiscal 2005 to $62.2 million for fiscal 2006.  As previously discussed, this Segment’s prior year
results were only for a portion of the year (since November 19, 2004) and therefore readers are encouraged to
review the financial information provided in the Form S-4/A filed October 4, 2004 to evaluate this segment’s
performance.  As a percent of sales, this Segment’s gross profit increased significantly from 21.8% for fiscal year
2005 to 26.1% for fiscal year 2006.  The Segment’s performance, on a year-to-date basis have been favorably
impacted by the following:  1) favorable product mix, 2) reduced material costs, and 3) improved manufacturing
processes which have resulted in manufacturing efficiencies.  

Fiscal year ending 2006 2005 2004
(Gross profit by segment)

Print $ 79,859 $ 78,521 $ 68,548
Apparel 62,231 12,236 --
Total $ 142,090 $ 90,757 $ 68,548
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Print Segment – Our Print Segment’s segment profit for fiscal year 2006, decreased by approximately $.9
million, or 2.0%, from $44.3 million for fiscal year 2005 to $43.4 million for fiscal year 2006.  Primarily as a result
of increases in our Print Segment’s sales during fiscal year 2005 and reduction in operational expenses, this
Segment’s profit increased by approximately $8.2 million, or 22.7%, as compared to fiscal year 2004.   As a
percent of sales, this Segment’s profits were 13.5%, 14.3% and 13.9% for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.  This Segment’s profit during fiscal year 2006, as discussed previously, was impacted by operational
performance issues encountered by our Adams McClure plant in executing a large contract.  Without these
operational issues, management estimates that this Group’s segment profit would have been approximately
14.6%.   As previously reported, management has evaluated the cause of the operational problems encountered
and has implemented changes in both personnel and processes to prevent its recurrence.  

Apparel Segment – Our Apparel Segment’s profit increased approximately $26.5 million, from $3.6 million for
fiscal 2005 to $30.1 million for fiscal 2006.  As previously discussed, this Segment’s prior year results were only
for a portion of the year (since November 19, 2004) and therefore readers are encouraged to review the financial
information provided in the Form S-4/A filed October 4, 2004 to evaluate this Segment’s performance.  As a
percent of sales, this Segment’s profit increased significantly from 6.4% for fiscal year 2005 to 12.6% for fiscal
year 2006.  The majority of this improvement, approximately 67%, came through improvements in this
Segment’s manufacturing performance, as previously discussed, the remainder came through operational
expense improvements. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the disclosures and reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  We evaluate our
estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis, including those related to allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory valuations, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and income taxes.  We base our 
estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.  We believe the following accounting policies are the most critical due to their 
affect on the Company’s more significant estimates and judgments used in preparation of its consolidated
financial statements.

The Company maintains a defined-benefit pension plan for employees.  Included in our financial results are
pension costs that are measured using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial assumptions used may differ from
actual results.

Fiscal year ending 2006 2005 2004
(Profit by segment)

Print $ 43,351 $ 44,275 $ 36,139
Apparel 30,085 3,575 --
Total 73,436 47,850 36,139

Less corporate expenses 9,465 10,385 7,249
Earnings before income taxes $ 63,971 $ 37,465 $ 28,890
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Intangibles generated through acquisitions are based upon independent appraisals of their values and are either
amortized over their useful life, or evaluated periodically (at least once a year) to determine whether the value
has been impaired by events occurring during the fiscal year.

We exercise judgment in evaluating our long-lived assets for impairment.  The Company assesses the
impairment of long-lived assets that include other intangible assets, goodwill, and property, plant and equipment
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.  In performing tests of impairment, the Company must make assumptions regarding the estimated
future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets in assessing the
recoverability of its property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles.  If these estimates or the
related assumptions change, the Company may be required to record impairment charges for these assets in the
future.  Actual results could differ from assumptions made by management.  We believe our businesses will
generate sufficient undiscounted cash flow to more than recover the investments we have made in property,
plant and equipment, as well as the goodwill and other intangibles recorded as a result of our acquisitions.  The
Company cannot predict the occurrence of future impairment triggering events nor the impact such events might
have on its reported asset values.

Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of products.  Net sales consist of gross sales invoiced to
customers, less certain related charges, including discounts, returns and other allowances.  Returns, discounts
and other allowances have historically been insignificant.  In some cases and upon customer request, the
Company prints and stores custom print product for customer specified future delivery, generally within six
months.  In this case, risk of loss from obsolescence passes to the customer, the customer is invoiced under
normal credit terms and revenue is recognized when manufacturing is complete.  Approximately $16.4 million,
$13.9 million and $15.3 million of revenue was recognized under these agreements during fiscal years ended
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair values of derivatives are
accounted for based upon their intended use and designation.  The Company’s interest rate swap is held for
purposes other than trading.  The Company utilized swap agreements related to its term and revolving loans to
effectively fix the interest rate for a specified principal amount of the loans.  The swap has been designated as
a cash flow hedge, and the after tax effect of the mark-to-market valuation that relates to the effective amount
of derivative financial instrument is recorded as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income with
the offset included in accrued expenses.  

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect estimated losses resulting from the inability of
customers to make required payments.  On an on-going basis, we evaluate the collectability of accounts
receivable based upon historical collection trends, current economic factors, and the assessment of the
collectability of specific accounts.  We evaluate the collectability of specific accounts using a combination of
factors, including the age of the outstanding balances, evaluation of customers’ current and past financial
condition and credit scores, recent payment history, current economic environment, discussions with our project
managers, and discussions with the customers directly.   

Our inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market.  The Company regularly reviews inventory values on
hand, using specific aging categories, and writes down inventory deemed obsolete and/or slow-moving
inventory based on historical usage and estimated future usage to its estimated marked value.  As actual future
demand or market conditions may vary from those projected by management, adjustments to inventory
valuations may be required.

F I N A N C I A L  D ATA
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As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our
income taxes in each jurisdiction in which we operate.  This process involves estimating our actual current tax
exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and
accounting purposes.  These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our
consolidated balance sheet.  We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered
from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation
allowance.  To the extent we establish a valuation allowance, we must include an expense within the tax
provision in the consolidated statements of income.  In the event that actual results differ from these estimates,
our provision for income taxes could be materially impacted.

In view of such uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements since
such statements speak only as of the date when made.  We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

New Accounting Standards

Share-Based Payment: On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-
Based Payment, which is a revision of Statement 123. Statement 123(R) supersedes Opinion 25, and amends
FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach in Statement 123(R) is similar to the
approach described in Statement 123. However, Statement 123(R) generally requires share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options and purchases under employee stock purchase plans, to
be recognized in the statement of operations based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure of fair value
recognition will no longer be an alternative. 

Statement 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods: 

• Modified prospective method: Compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date of
adoption (a) based on the requirements of Statement 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the
effective date of adoption and (b) based on the requirements of Statement 123 for all awards granted to
employees prior to the effective date of adoption that remain unvested on the date of adoption.

• Modified retrospective method: Includes the requirements of the modified prospective method described
above, but also permits restatement using amounts previously disclosed under the pro forma provisions
of Statement 123 either for (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption. 

On April 14, 2005, the SEC announced that the Statement 123(R) effective transition date will be extended to
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We are required to adopt this new standard on March 1, 2006. 

Statement 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense
to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as prescribed under current
accounting rules. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in
periods after adoption. Total cash flow will remain unchanged from what would have been reported under prior
accounting rules. 

As permitted by Statement 123(R), we currently account for share-based payments to employees using Opinion
25’s intrinsic value method. As a consequence, we generally recognize no compensation cost for employee stock
options.  Although the adoption of Statement 123(R)’s fair value method will have no adverse impact on our
balance sheet or total cash flows, it will affect our net income and diluted earnings per share. The actual effects
of adopting Statement 123(R) will depend on numerous factors including the amounts of share-based payments
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granted in the future, the valuation model we use to value future share-based payments to employees and
estimated forfeiture rates. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the effect on reported
net earnings and earnings per share if we had accounted for our stock option plans using the fair value
recognition provisions of Statement 123 and the expected impact on our future operations when we adopt
Statement 123(R). 

Inventory Costs: In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs” (SFAS 151) SFAS 151
requires that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage be recognized as
current-period charges.  Further, SFAS 151 requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory
based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.  Unallocated overheads must be recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.  SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005.  We will adopt the provisions of SFAS 151 in our first quarter of fiscal 2007,
and the impact of such adoption is not expected to have a material impact on our financial position or on our
results of operations.

Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on debt.  A discussion of the Company’s
accounting policies for derivative instruments is included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company may from time to time utilize interest rate swaps to manage overall borrowing costs and reduce
exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest rates. The Company does not use derivative instruments for trading
purposes.  The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and long-term financial instruments
carrying variable interest rates.  The Company’s variable rate financial instruments, including the outstanding
credit facilities, totaled $102.5 million at fiscal year ended 2006.  The impact on the Company’s results of
operations of a one-point interest rate change on the outstanding balance of the variable rate financial
instruments as of fiscal year ended 2006 would be approximately $1,000,000.  

This market risk discussion contains forward-looking statements.  Actual results may differ materially from this
discussion based upon general market conditions and changes in domestic and global financial markets.
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Fiscal Years Ended 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 559,397 $ 365,353  $ 259,360 $ 240,757 $ 236,923 $ 229,186 $ 176,600 $ 159,690 $ 162,962 $ 161,969

Earnings before income taxes 63,971 37,465  28,890 24,345 24,403 21,571 24,041 22,558 15,805 21,485

Provision for income taxes 23,434 14,506  10,939 9,098 9,437 8,394 8,918 8,448 5,597 7,992

Net earnings 40,537 22,959  17,951 15,247 14,966 13,177 15,123 14,110 10,208 13,493

As a % of sales 7.2% 6.3% 6.9% 6.3% 6.3% 5.7% 8.6% 8.8% 6.3% 8.3%

Per common share-diluted $ 1.58 $ 1.19  $ 1.08 $ 0.93 $ 0.92 $ 0.81 $ 0.93 $ 0.87 $ 0.62 $ 0.82

Dividends 15,780 11,574  10,146 10,093 10,089 10,075 10,068 10,116 10,191 10,110

Per share .62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .615

Shareholders’ equity 297,335 271,731  110,582 96,903 96,035 91,540 88,267 83,499 81,672 81,586

Per share-basic 11.68 14.33  6.76 5.95 5.89 5.63 5.45 5.12 4.97 4.96

Current assets 158,455 151,630  63,605 65,012 62,646 58,263 43,305 52,676 53,660 52,627

Current liabilities 63,961 81,383  25,400 25,294 23,966 17,908 10,525 8,367 10,396 10,307

Net working capital 94,494 70,247  38,205 39,718 38,680 40,355 32,780 44,309 43,264 42,320

Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 2.5:1 1.9:1 2.5:1 2.6:1 2.6:1 3.3:1 4.1:1 6.3:1 5.2:1 5.1:1

Depreciation of plant and equipment 15,474 10,367 9,216 9,156 8,683 8,313 5,389 4,941 5,634 4,475

Additions to property, plant and equipment 9,040 6,143  4,543 3,763 2,254 3,594 2,988 3,663 9,576 13,575
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2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

$ 236,923 $ 229,186 $ 176,600 $ 159,690 $ 162,962 $ 161,969

24,403 21,571 24,041 22,558 15,805 21,485

9,437 8,394 8,918 8,448 5,597 7,992

14,966 13,177 15,123 14,110 10,208 13,493

6.3% 5.7% 8.6% 8.8% 6.3% 8.3%

$ 0.92 $ 0.81 $ 0.93 $ 0.87 $ 0.62 $ 0.82

10,089 10,075 10,068 10,116 10,191 10,110

.62 .62 .62 .62 .62 .615

96,035 91,540 88,267 83,499 81,672 81,586

5.89 5.63 5.45 5.12 4.97 4.96

62,646 58,263 43,305 52,676 53,660 52,627

23,966 17,908 10,525 8,367 10,396 10,307

38,680 40,355 32,780 44,309 43,264 42,320

2.6:1 3.3:1 4.1:1 6.3:1 5.2:1 5.1:1

8,683 8,313 5,389 4,941 5,634 4,475

2,254 3,594 2,988 3,663 9,576 13,575
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Fiscal Years – February 28, 2006 2005
(in thousands, except share and par value amounts)

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,860 $ 10,694
Accounts receivables, net of allowance for doubtful 

receivables of $3,001 in 2006 and $3,567 in 2005 41,686 46,685
Prepaid expenses 4,425 5,162
Inventories 89,155 79,900
Other current assets 9,329 9,189

Total current assets 158,455 151,630

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Plant, machinery and equipment 120,456 114,053
Land and buildings 38,038 36,346
Other 20,292 19,521

Total property, plant and equipment 178,786 169,920
Less accumulated depreciation 114,983 100,358

Net property, plant and equipment 63,803 69,562

Goodwill 178,280 178,472

Trademarks, net 61,941 62,090

Purchased customer lists, net 21,632 23,275

Deferred finance charges, net 1,390 2,817

Prepaid pension asset 8,277 8,283

Other assets 623 1,117
Total assets $ 494,401 $ 497,246

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Fiscal Years – February 28, 2006 2005
(in thousands, except share and par value amounts)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 26,589 $ 33,887
Accrued expenses: 

Employee compensation and benefits 17,250 16,135
Taxes other than income 1,488 3,154
Federal and state income taxes payable 2,490 1,389
Other 4,524 5,116

Current installments of long-term debt 11,620 21,702
Total current liabilities 63,961 81,383

Long-term debt, less current installments 102,916 112,342
Deferred tax liability and other 30,189 31,790
Total liabilities 197,066 225,515

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:
Series A junior participating preferred stock of $10 par value,

Authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued -- --
Common stock $2.50 par value, Authorized 40,000,000 shares;

issued 30,053,443 shares in 2006 and 2005 75,134 75,134
Additional paid in capital 122,922 123,640
Retained earnings 181,423 156,666
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation 460 5
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net -- 1

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 460 6

Treasury stock:
Cost of 4,574,329 shares in 2006 and 4,635,444 shares in 2005 (82,604) (83,715)

Total shareholders’ equity 297,335 271,731
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 494,401 $ 497,246
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Fiscal Years Ended 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Net sales $ 559,397 $ 365,353 $ 259,360
Cost of goods sold 417,307 274,596 190,812
Gross profit 142,090 90,757 68,548

Selling, general and administrative expenses 70,060 51,159 38,521

Earnings from operations 72,030 39,598 30,027

Other income (expense):
Interest expense (8,331) (2,755) (830)
Other income (expense), net 272 622 (307)

(8,059) (2,133) (1,137)

Earnings before income taxes 63,971 37,465 28,890

Provision for income taxes 23,434 14,506 10,939

Net earnings $ 40,537 $ 22,959 $ 17,951

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 25,452,582 18,935,533 16,358,107
Diluted 25,728,299 19,259,550 16,601,838

Per share amounts
Net earnings-basic $ 1.59 $ 1.21 $ 1.10
Net earnings-diluted $ 1.58 $ 1.19                    $ 1.08
Cash dividends per share                                           $ 0.62 $ 0.62 $ 0.62

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Years Ended Accumulated Other
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) Additional Comprehensive

Common Stock Paid-In Retained Income Treasury Stock
Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Shares Amount Total

Balance February 28, 2003 21,249,860 $53,125 $461 $137,848 $(5,225) (4,916,887) $(89,306) $96,903
Net earnings -- -- -- 17,951 -- -- -- 17,951
Unrealized gain on 

derivative instruments, net -- -- -- -- 129 -- -- 129
Minimum pension liability, 

net of tax effect -- -- -- -- 4,982 -- -- 4,982
Comprehensive income 23,062
Dividends declared 

($.62 per share) -- -- -- (10,146) -- -- -- (10,146)
Exercise of stock options -- -- (410) -- -- 60,825 1,105 695
Treasury stock purchases -- -- -- -- -- (564) (7) (7)
Other -- -- 75 -- -- -- -- 75

Balance February 29, 2004 21,249,860 53,125 126 145,653 (114) (4,856,626) (88,208) 110,582
Net earnings -- -- -- 22,959 -- -- -- 22,959
Foreign currency translation -- -- -- -- 5 -- -- 5
Unrealized gain on 

derivative instruments, net -- -- -- -- 115 -- -- 115
Comprehensive income 23,079
Dividends declared 

($.62 per share) -- -- -- (11,574) -- -- -- (11,574)
Shares issued in acquisitions 8,803,583 22,009 123,514 -- -- 177,458 3,700 149,223
Exercise of stock options -- -- -- (372) -- 43,850 795 423
Treasury stock purchases -- -- -- -- -- (126) (2) (2)

Balance February 28, 2005 30,053,443 75,134 123,640 156,666 6 (4,635,444) (83,715) 271,731
Net earnings -- -- -- 40,537 -- -- -- 40,537
Foreign currency translation -- -- -- -- 455 -- -- 455
Unrealized loss on 

derivative instruments, net -- -- -- -- (1) -- -- (1)
Comprehensive income 40,991
Dividends declared 

($.62 per share) -- -- -- (15,780) -- -- -- (15,780)
Exercise of stock options -- -- (718) -- -- 79,369 1,434 716
Treasury stock purchases -- -- -- -- -- (18,254) (323) (323)

Balance February 28, 2006 30,053,443 $75,134 $122,922 $181,423 $460 (4,574,329) $(82,604) $297,335

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Years Ended 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings $ 40,537 $ 22,959 $ 17,951
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 15,474 10,367 9,216
Amortization of deferred finance charges 495 242 --
Amortization of trademarks and customer lists 2,337 709 132
Gain on the sale of equipment (188) (316) (65)
Bad debt expense 317 893 890
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

net of the efforts of acquisitions
Accounts receivables 4,633 (2,922) 1,387
Prepaid expenses 761 (1,315) (314)
Inventories (9,332) (3,958) (617)
Other current assets 334 (2,084) 1,189
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,227) (6,640) 1,017
Prepaid pension assets 6 (735) (4,696)
Other assets (720) 2,842 159

Net cash provided by operating activities 47,427 20,042 26,249

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (9,040) (6,143) (4,543)
Purchase of operating assets, net of cash acquired (1,196) (115,429) --
Proceeds from disposal of property 294 481 176
Other -- -- (179)

Net cash used in investing activities (9,942) (121,091) (4,546)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Debt issued 9,000 114,200 --
Repayment of debt (28,508) (6,375) (11,038)
Dividends (15,780) (11,574) (10,146)
Purchase of treasury stock -- (2 ) (7 )
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 393 423 695

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (34,895) 96,672 (20,496)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 576 4 --

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3,166 (4,373) 1,207

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,694 15,067 13,860

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 13,860 $ 10,694 $ 15,067

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(1) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND GENERAL MATTERS

Nature of Operations – Ennis, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the Company) are principally engaged in
the production of and sale of business forms, other business products and apparel to customers primarily
located in the United States.

Basis of Consolidation – The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.  The
Company’s fiscal years ended on the following days:  February 28, 2006, February 28, 2005 and February 29,
2004 (fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively). 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as time
deposits held at major banks, commercial paper, United States government agency discount notes, money
market mutual funds and other money market securities with original maturities of 90 days or less. At February
28, 2006, the Company had $442,000 in Mexico and $310,000 in Canadian bank accounts.

Accounts Receivable – Trade receivables are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade
terms requiring payment generally within 30 days from the invoice date. The Company’s estimate of the
allowance for doubtful accounts for trade receivables is primarily determined based upon the length of time that
the receivables are past due. In addition, management estimates are used to determine probable losses based
upon an analysis of prior collection experience, specific account risks and economic conditions.  Estimated
losses are recorded to an allowance account.

The Company initiates a series of actions that occur based upon the aging of past due trade receivables,
including letters, statements and direct customer contact. Accounts are deemed uncollectible based on past
account experience and current account financial condition.  When it is determined an account will not be
collected, it is written off to the allowance.

Select trade accounts receivable are sold by the Company to various factors on both non-recourse and recourse
basis.  These transactions are accounted for as a sale of financial assets.  Advances may be paid at the
Company’s request on receivables not yet collected by the factors.

Inventories – With the exception of approximately one third of its raw material content of its business forms
inventories valued at the lower of last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost or market, the Company values its inventory at the
lower of first in, first out (FIFO) cost or market.  At fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005, approximately 6.65% and
10% of inventories, respectively, are valued at LIFO with the remainder of inventories valued at the lower of
FIFO cost or market.  The Company provides reserves for excess and obsolete inventory based upon analysis
of quantities on hand, recent sales volumes and reference to market prices.

Property, Plant and Equipment – Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided by the straight-
line method at rates presently considered adequate to amortize the total cost over the useful lives of the assets,
which range from 3 to 11 years for plant machinery and equipment and 10 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements.  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated
useful life of the improvements.  Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  Renewals and
betterments are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining life of the specific property unit.  The Company
capitalizes all leases, which are in substance acquisitions of property.  At February 28, 2006, the Company had
property, plant & equipment of approximately $2.4 million classified as held for sale, which is reported in other
current assets on the consolidated balance sheet.  This balance reflects the net book value of a vacant facility
and the associated land held for sale, which is expected to be sold during fiscal, 2007.

N o t e s  t o  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s     35



F I N A N C I A L  D ATA

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets – Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price paid over the value of
net assets of businesses acquired and is not amortized.  Intangible assets with determinable lives are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life.  Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are evaluated for
impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, using a fair-value-based test
that compares the fair value of the related business unit to its carrying value.

Long-Lived Assets – Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.  If such assets are considered to
be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is based upon future discounted net cash flows.  

Approximately $3,720,000 and $4,527,000 of the Company’s property, plant and equipment is located in Mexico
at fiscal year end 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell.  Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Costs of normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.  Upon the disposition of
assets, their cost and related depreciation are removed from the respective accounts.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivables and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.
Long-term debt as of fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005 approximates its fair value as the interest rate is tied to
market rates.  The related interest rate swaps were recorded at fair value at fiscal year ended 2005.  See also
Note 5. 

Deferred Finance Charges – The Company accounts for deferred finance charges in connection with its
revolving and term credit facility.  The costs associated with the debt are amortized using the straight-line
method over the term of the facility.  If the facility is extinguished before the end of the term, the remaining
balance of the deferred finance charges will be amortized fully in such year. 

Derivative Financial Instruments – Derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair values of derivatives are accounted for based upon their intended use and designation.  The
Company’s interest rate swap is held for purposes other than trading.  The Company utilized swap agreements
related to its term and revolving loans to effectively fix the interest rate for a specified principal amount of the
loans.  The swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge and the after-tax effect of the mark-to-market
valuation that relates to the effective amount of derivative financial instrument is recorded as an adjustment to
accumulated other comprehensive income with the offset included in accrued expenses.  There were no
derivatives, swaps or deferred gains or losses at the end of fiscal year 2006.

Revenue Recognition – Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of products.  Net sales represent
gross sales invoiced to customers, less certain related charges, including discounts, returns and other
allowances.  Returns, discounts and other allowances have historically been insignificant.  In some cases and
upon customer request, the Company prints and stores custom print product for customer specified future
delivery, generally within six months.  In this case, risk of loss passes to the customer, the customer is invoiced
under normal credit terms, and revenue is recognized when manufacturing is complete.  Approximately
$16,395,000, $13,945,000, and $15,355,000 of revenue was recognized under these arrangements during fiscal
years 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.  
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Advertising Expenses – The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.  Catalog and brochure
preparation and printing costs, which are considered direct response advertising, are amortized to expense over
the life of the catalog, which typically ranges from three to twelve months.  Advertising expense was
approximately $1,559,000, $1,628,000 and $1,434,000, during the fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.  Included in advertising expense is amortization related to direct response advertising of $622,000,
$454,000 and $537,000 for the fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Unamortized direct
response advertising costs included in other current assets at fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005 were $379,000
and $208,000, respectively.

Income Taxes – Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards.  Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Earnings Per Share – Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of additional shares
that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive securities had been issued, calculated using the treasury
stock method.  At fiscal years ended 2006 and 2004, 61,619 and 10,500 of options, respectively, were not
included in the diluted earnings per share computation because their exercise price exceeded the average fair
market value of the Company’s stock for the year.  No shares were anti-dilutive at fiscal year end 2005.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) – Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
consists of the changes in the fair value of the Company’s cash flow hedge, foreign currency translation and
pension.  Amounts charged directly to shareholders’ equity related to the Company’s interest rate swap and
pension plan are included in “other comprehensive income.”  Adjustments resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of our Mexican and Canadian operations are charged or credited directly to shareholders’
equity and shown as cumulative translation adjustments in other comprehensive income (loss).

Foreign Currency Translation – The functional currency for the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the
applicable local currency.  Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated to U.S. dollars at year-
end exchange rates.  Income and expense items are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing during the
year.  The adjustments resulting from translating the financial statements of the foreign subsidiary are reflected
in shareholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred.

Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual
results could differ from these estimates.
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Shipping and Handling Costs – Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling costs are included in
net sales and related costs are included in cost of goods sold.

Stock Based Compensation – The Company accounts for employee and director stock-based compensation
arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (APB No. 25), and related interpretations, and complies with the disclosure
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS No. 123) and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure” (SFAS No. 148).   Under APB No. 25, compensation
expense for fixed awards is based upon the difference, if any, on the date of grant between the estimated fair
value of the Company’s stock and the exercise price and is amortized over the vesting period.  All stock-based
awards to non-employees, if any, are accounted for at their fair value.  The Company is required to disclose the
pro forma net income as if the fair value method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied.

The following table represents the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied
the fair value based method and recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation
for the fiscal years ended (in thousands, except per share amounts):

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of stock-based compensation plans and other
options is amortized to expense over the vesting period.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Adopted  

Share-Based Payment: On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-
Based Payment, which is a revision of Statement 123.  Statement 123(R) supersedes Opinion 25, and amends
FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows.  Generally, the approach in Statement 123(R) is similar to
the approach described in Statement 123.  However, Statement 123(R) generally requires share-based payments
to employees, including grants of employee stock options and purchases under employee stock purchase plans,
to be recognized in the statement of operations based on their fair values.  Pro forma disclosure of fair value
recognition will no longer be an alternative. 

2006 2005 2004

Net earnings, as reported $ 40,537 $ 22,959 $ 17,951
Deduct total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair value based methods for all
awards, net of related tax effects (134) (47) (26)
Pro forma net earnings $ 40,403 $ 22,912 $ 17,925
Earnings per share:

As reported - basic $ 1.59 $ 1.21 $ 1.10
Pro forma - basic $ 1.59 $ 1.21 $ 1.10
As reported - diluted $ 1.58 $ 1.19 $ 1.08
Pro forma - diluted $ 1.57 $ 1.19 $ 1.08
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Statement 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods: 

• Modified prospective method: Compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date of
adoption (a) based on the requirements of Statement 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after
the effective date of adoption and (b) based on the requirements of Statement 123 for all awards granted
to employees prior to the effective date of adoption that remain unvested on the date of adoption.

• Modified retrospective method: Includes the requirements of the modified prospective method described
above, but also permits restatement using amounts previously disclosed under the pro forma provisions
of Statement 123 either for (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim periods of the year of
adoption. 

On April 14, 2005, the SEC announced that the Statement 123(R) effective transition date will be extended to
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005.  The Company is required to adopt this new standard on March
1, 2006. 

Statement 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense
to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as prescribed under current
accounting rules.  This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows
in periods after adoption.  Total cash flow will remain unchanged from what would have been reported under
prior accounting rules. 

As permitted by Statement 123(R), the Company currently accounts for share-based payments to employees
using Opinion 25’s intrinsic value method.  As a consequence, the Company generally recognizes no
compensation cost for employee stock options.  Although the adoption of Statement 123(R)’s fair value method
will have no adverse impact on the Company’s balance sheet or its total cash flows, it will affect the Company’s
net income and diluted earnings per share.  The actual effects of adopting Statement 123(R) will depend on
numerous factors including the amounts of share-based payments granted in the future, the valuation model the
Company uses to value future share-based payments to employees and estimated forfeiture rates. 

Inventory Costs: In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs (SFAS 151) SFAS 151
requires that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage be recognized as
current-period charges.  Further, SFAS 151 requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory
based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.  Unallocated overheads must be recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.  SFAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005.  The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS 151 in our first quarter of
fiscal 2007, and the impact of such adoption is not expected to have a material impact on its financial position
or on its results of operations or cash flows. 

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk principally consist of
cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and trade receivables. Cash and cash equivalents and short-
term investments are placed with high-credit quality financial institutions. The Company’s credit risk with respect
to trade receivables is limited in management’s opinion due to industry and geographic diversification. As
disclosed on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to
cover estimated credit losses associated with accounts receivable.
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The Company, for quality and pricing reasons, purchases its paper, cotton and yarn products from a limited
number of suppliers.  To maintain its high standard of color control associated with its apparel products, the
Company purchases its dyeing chemicals from a single source.  While other sources may be available to the
Company to purchase these products, they may not be available at the cost or at the quality the Company has
come to expect.  

(2) DUE FROM FACTORS

Pursuant to terms of an agreement between the Company and various factors, the Company sells a majority of
its trade accounts receivable of the Apparel Segment to the factors on a non-recourse basis.  The price at which
the accounts are sold is the invoice amount reduced by the factor commission of between 0.25% and 1.50%.
Additionally, some trade accounts receivable are sold to the factors on a recourse basis.

Trade accounts receivable not sold to the factor remain in the custody and control of the Company and the
Company maintains all credit risk on those accounts as well as accounts which are sold to the factor with
recourse.

The Company may request payment from the factor in advance of the collection date or maturity.  Any such
advance payments are assessed in interest charges through the collection date or maturity at the Chase Prime
Rate.  The Company’s obligations with respect to advances from the factor are limited to the interest charges
thereon.  Advance payments are limited to a maximum of 90% (ninety percent) of eligible accounts receivable.

The following table represents amounts due from factors included in accounts receivable for the fiscal years
ended 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for an estimate of amounts that are uncollectible.
Substantially all of the Company’s receivables are due from customers in North America.  The Company extends
credit to its customers based upon its evaluation of the following factors:  (i) the customer’s financial condition,
(ii) the amount of credit the customer requests and (iii) the customer’s actual payment history (which includes
disputed invoice resolution).  The Company does not typically require its customers to post a deposit or supply
collateral.  The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an analysis that estimates the amount
of its total customer receivable balance that is not collectible.  This analysis includes assessing a default
probability to customers’ receivable balance, which is influenced by several factors including (i) current market
conditions, (ii) periodic review of customer credit worthiness, and (iii) review of customer receivable aging and
payment trends.  The Company writes-off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible, and payments
subsequently received on such receivables are credited to  the allowance in the period the payment is received.
Credit losses from continuing operations have consistently been within management’s expectations.
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2006 2005

Outstanding factored receivables
Without recourse $ 19,762 $ 26,756
With recourse 1,099 1,213

Advances (17,772) (24,675)
Due from factors $ 3,089 $ 3,294
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The following table represents the activity in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts for the fiscal years
ended (in thousands):

(4) INVENTORIES

The following table summarizes the components of inventories at the different stages of production for the fiscal
years ended (in thousands):

The excess of current costs at FIFO over LIFO stated values was approximately $4,269,000 and $4,166,000 at
fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

There were no significant liquidations of LIFO inventories during the fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005.

(5) LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following at fiscal years ended (in thousands):

2006 2005

Raw material $ 12,694 $ 26,717
Work-in-process 16,886 17,669
Finished goods 59,575 35,514

$ 89,155 $ 79,900

2006 2005 2004

Balance at beginning of period $ 3,567 $ 1,771 $ 1,294
Bad debt expense 317 893 890
Other (1) 3 1,505 --
Recoveries 67 115 47
Accounts written off, net (953) (717) (460)
Balance at end of period $ 3,001 $ 3,567 $ 1,771
(1) Principally the allowance established in connection with certain acquisitions.

2006 2005

Revolving credit facility $ 62,500 $ 63,500
Term credit facility 40,000 50,000
Capital lease obligations 736 1,664
Notes payable to finance companies 1,300 8,344
Other 10,000 10,536

114,536 134,044
Less current installments 11,620 21,702
Long-term debt $ 102,916 $ 112,342
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As of February 28, 2006, the Company was operating under the original credit facility dated November 2004,
which matured in November 2009 (the “Original Facility”).  The Original Facility was a $150 million combined
revolver and term facility ($100 million - revolver and $50 million - term).  As of February 28, 2006, we had $62.5
million of borrowings under the revolver and $13.2 million outstanding under letter of credit arrangements,
leaving us availability of approximately $24.3 million. The term facility required quarterly payments of $2.5
million, and $40 million was outstanding as of February 28, 2006.  The Original Facility was secured by
substantially all of our personal and investment property and bore interest at a floating rate of LIBOR plus a
spread dependent upon the Company’s total funded debt level to cash flows as defined.  The rate in effect at
February 28, 2006 was 5.82%.  The Original Facility contained financial covenants, restrictions on capital
expenditures, acquisitions, asset dispositions, and additional debt, as well as other customary covenants. 

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with a group of lenders led by
LaSalle Bank N.A. (the “Amended Credit Facility”).  The Amended Credit Facility provides us access to $150
million in revolving credit and matures on March 31, 2010.  The facility bears interest at the rate of London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus .50% to 1.50% (a reduction of 75 basis points from the original facility),
depending on our total funded debt to EBITDA ratio, as defined.  The Amended Credit Facility is secured by
substantially all of our personal and investment property.  While the Amended Credit Facility still maintains
certain financial covenants, restrictions on capital expenditures, acquisitions, asset dispositions and additional
debt, and other customary covenants, these covenants/restrictions have been eased significantly from our
original credit facility.

The Company acquired certain equipment under capital leases with its acquisition of Alstyle (see Note 11). 
The assets under capital leases have a total gross book value of $1,196,000 and $6,037,000 and the 
related accumulated amortization of $477,000 and $525,000 for fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005, respectively,
and are included in property and equipment. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in
depreciation expense.

Notes payable to finance companies, with interest due monthly at 6.86% to 9.46% and principal paid in equal
monthly installments.  The notes mature at dates ranging from September 2006 through November 2007 and
are collateralized by certain equipment.

Notes payable classified as “Other” were obligations of Alstyle.  These are loans to individuals (former
shareholders of Alstyle) with annual payments bearing interest at rates of 4.0% maturing November 2007.
Payments on these notes are subject to set-off arbitration procedures relating to subsequently discovered pre-
acquisition liabilities that were either undisclosed at the time of closing or inappropriately accrued for in the
books and records, and other terms and provisions.
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The Company’s long-term debt maturities for the five years following February 28, 2006 are as follows 
(in thousands):

(6) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In fiscal year 1999, the Company adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan, which provides that the holders of the
Company’s common stock receive one preferred share purchase right (a Right) for each share of the Company’s
common stock they own.  Each Right entitles the holder to buy one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, par value $10.00 per share, at a purchase price of $27.50 per one one-thousandth
of a share, subject to adjustment.  The Rights are not currently exercisable, but would become exercisable if
certain events occurred relating to a person or group acquiring or attempting to acquire 15% or more of the
outstanding shares of common stock of the Company (the Event).  Under those circumstances, the holders of
the Rights would be entitled to buy shares of the Company’s common stock or stock of an acquirer of the
Company at a 50% discount.  The Rights expire on November 4, 2008, unless earlier redeemed by the Company.
At any time prior the Event, the Board of Directors of the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in
part, at a price of $0.01 per Right (the Redemption Price).  The redemption of the Rights may be made effective
at such time and on such basis and conditions as the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, may establish.
Immediately upon any redemption of the Rights, the right to exercise the Rights will terminate and the only right
of the holders of Rights will be to receive the Redemption Price.  The terms of the Rights may be amended by
the Board of Directors of the Company without the consent of the holders of the Rights, except that from and
after such time as any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person no such
amendment may adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Rights.   

The Company’s revolving credit facility restricts acquisition of treasury shares and distributions to its
shareholders.

(7) STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has stock options granted to key executives and managerial employees and non-employee
directors. At fiscal year ended 2006, the Company has two stock option plans: the 1998 Option and Restricted
Stock Plan amended and restated as of June 17, 2004 and the 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan. The Company
has 1,109,727 shares of unissued common stock reserved under the stock option plans for issuance to officers
and directors, and supervisory employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.  The exercise price of each option
granted equals the quoted market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and an option’s
maximum term is ten years.  Options may be granted at different times during the year and vest over a period
of immediate to a five-year period.
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Capital
Debt Leases Total

2007 $ 11,026 $637 $ 11,663
2008 274 123 397
2009 -- 24 24
2010 -- -- --
2011 102,500 -- 102,500

113,800 784 114,584
Less amount representing interest -- 48 48

$113,800 $736 $114,536
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The per share weighted-average fair value of options granted during fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004
was $3.52, $2.86 and $1.75, respectively, on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions for the fiscal years ended:

Following is a summary of transactions of stock options during the three fiscal years ended in 2006:
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Number of Weighted Average 
Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at February 28, 2003
(376,438 shares exercisable) 767,750 $ 9.37
Granted 40,000 12.46
Terminated (47,750) 11.34
Exercised (60,825) 11.42

Outstanding at February 29, 2004
(445,425 shares exercisable) 699,175 $ 9.23
Granted 48,700 16.05
Terminated (12,000) 10.42
Exercised (40,550) 9.61

Outstanding at February 28, 2005
(511,250 shares exercisable) 695,325 $ 9.67
Granted 96,619 18.51
Terminated (750) 10.25
Exercised (79,675) 9.02

Outstanding at February 28, 2006
(543,900 shares exercisable) 711,519 $ 10.94

2006 2005 2004

Expected dividend yield 3.64% 3.42% 4.38%
Stock price volatility 23.85% 23.59% 23.24%
Risk-free interest rate 4.37% 3.93% 2.89%
Expected option term 5 years 5 years 5 years
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at the end of fiscal year 2006:

(8) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the applicable period.  Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential
dilution that could occur if stock options or other contracts to issue common shares were exercised or converted
into common stock.  The following table sets forth the computation for basic and diluted earnings per share for
the fiscal years ended:

(9) INCOME TAXES

The following table represents components of the provision for income taxes for fiscal years ended (in
thousands):
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Number Remaining Contractual Weighted Average Number Weighted  Average 
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (in Years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$ 7.06 to $ 8.69 329,000 3.9 $ 7.91 314,000 $ 7.91
10.06 to 11.67 200,200 2.9 10.51 177,700 10.36
13.28 to 16.42 120,700 7.9 15.44 14,500 13.55
19.69 61,619 3.4 19.69 37,700 19.69

711,519 4.8 $ 10.94 543,900 $ 9.68

2006 2005 2004

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 25,452,582 18,935,533 16,358,107 
Effect of dilutive stock options 275,717 324,017 243,731 
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 25,728,299 19,259,550 16,601,838 

Per share amounts:
Net earnings - basic                                                                  $1.59              $ 1.21              $ 1.10 
Net earnings - diluted                                                               $1.58              $ 1.19              $ 1.08 
Cash dividends                                                                        $0.62              $ 0.62              $ 0.62

2006 2005 2004

Current:
Federal $ 20,517 $ 13,254 $ 8,752 
State and local 2,900 2,234 1,127 
Foreign 1,237 -- --   

Deferred (1,220) (982) 1,060 
Total provision for income taxes $ 23,434 $ 14,506 $ 10,939 
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The following summary reconciles the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate
for the fiscal years ended:

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows (in thousands) for fiscal
years ended:

On October 22, 2004, the President signed the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the Act).  The Act creates
a temporary incentive for U.S. Corporations to repatriate foreign subsidiary earnings by providing an elective
85% dividends received deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations.  The Company has
evaluated the repatriation provisions of the Act and has determined that financial impact associated with such
is not material to the operating results of the Company.

(10) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company and certain subsidiaries have a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
approximately 15% of their employees.  Benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average
compensation for the highest five compensation years preceding retirement or termination.  The Company’s
funding policy is to contribute annually an amount in accordance with the requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).

46 N o t e s  t o  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

2006 2005 2004

Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Provision for state income taxes, net

of Federal income tax benefit 3.0 3.9 2.8 
Other (1.4) (0.2) 0.1  

36.6% 38.7% 37.9%

2006 2005

Current deferred assets related to:
Allowance for doubtful receivables  $ 1,170 $ 1,283
Inventory valuation allowance 3,417 2,239
Employee compensation and benefits 1,957 2,041
Other 391 760

$ 6,935 $ 6,323

Noncurrent deferred liability related to:
Depreciation $ 8,003 $ 8,017
Intangibles amortization and impairments 17,648 17,651
Prepaid pension cost 2,309 2,540
Partnership interest -- 207
Other 212 213

$ 28,172 $ 28,628
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The Company’s pension plan asset allocation, by asset category, is as follows for the fiscal years ended:

The Company’s target asset allocation is 50.0% equities, 47.0% fixed income, and 3.0% cash with a 10.0% plus
or minus factor based upon the combined judgments of the Company’s Administrative Committee and its
investment advisors.  The Plan’s investments were liquidated at fiscal year end 2005 in anticipation of a transfer
of the account to a new trustee.  The larger than normal amounts in the cash and cash equivalents at fiscal year
ended 2006 was the result of cash contributions received at year end, which were subsequently invested per
the target asset allocation.

The Company estimates the long-term rate of return on plan assets will be 8.0% based upon target asset
allocation.  Expected returns are developed based upon the information obtained from the Company’s
investment advisors.  The advisors provide ten-year historical and five-year expected returns on the fund in the
target asset allocation.  The return information is weighted based upon the asset allocation at the end of the
fiscal year.  The expected rate of return at the beginning of the fiscal year ended 2006 was 8.0%, the rate used
in the calculation of the current year pension expense.

Pension expense is composed of the following components included in our consolidated statement of earnings
for fiscal years ended (in thousands):

The following table represents the assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net periodic pension
cost for fiscal years ended:
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2006 2005 2004

Service cost $ 1,422 $ 1,470 $ 1,337 
Interest cost 2,443 2,417 2,359 
Expected return on plan assets (2,771) (2,663) (2,193)
Prior service cost (145) (145) (145)
Loss 1,057 1,066 1,046 
Net periodic pension cost $ 2,006 $ 2,145 $ 2,404 

2006 2005 2004

Weighted average discount rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.50%
Earnings progression 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.50%

2006 2005

Equity securities 47% 0%
Debt securities 43% 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 10% 100%
Total 100% 100%
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The following table represents amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets for fiscal years ended (in
thousands):

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $36,586,000 for fiscal year ended
2006 and $35,766,000 for fiscal year ended 2005.  The fair value of the Company’s plan assets was
approximately $37,607,000 and $35,779,000 for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Assets and obligations and funded status, as of the measurement date, are as follows for the fiscal years ended
(in thousands):

The measurement dates used to determine pension and other postretirement benefits is the Company’s fiscal
year end.  The Company expects to contribute from $2.0 million to $3.0 million during fiscal year 2007.  
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2006 2005

Beginning prepaid asset $ 8,283 $ 7,548
Company contributions 2,000 2,880
Net periodic pension cost (2,006) (2,145)
Ending prepaid asset $ 8,277 $ 8,283

2006 2005

Projected benefit obligation
Beginning of year $ 42,578 $ 41,340 
Service and interest cost 3,865 3,887 
Actuarial gain (loss) (725) 405 
Benefits paid (3,176) (3,054)
End of year 42,542 42,578 

Plan assets at fair value
Beginning of year 35,779 34,791 
Company contributions 2,000 2,880 
Gains on plan assets 3,004 1,162 
Benefits paid (3,176) (3,054)
End of year 37,607 35,779 

Unfunded status (4,935) (6,799)

Unrecognized losses 14,601 16,616 
Unrecognized prior service costs (1,389) (1,534)
Ending prepaid asset $ 8,277 $ 8,283 
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Estimated future benefit payments which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid in the fiscal years ended (in thousands):

Effective February 1, 1994, the Company adopted a Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan (the 401(k) Plan) for its
United States employees. The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all full-time employees who have completed sixty
days of service and attained the age of eighteen. United States employees can contribute up to 100 percent of
their annual compensation, but are limited to the maximum annual dollar amount allowable under the Internal
Revenue Code.  The 401(k) Plan provides for employer matching contributions or discretionary employer
contributions for certain employees not enrolled in the Pension Plan for Employees of the Company.  Eligibility
for employer contributions, matching percentage and limitations depends on the participant’s employment
location and whether the employees are covered by the Company’s Pension Plan, etc.  The Company’s matching
contributions are immediately vested.  The Company made matching 401(k) contributions in the amount of
$226,000, $187,000 and $122,000 in fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

In addition, the Northstar Computer Forms, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan was merged into the 401(k) Plan on
February 1, 2001.  The Company declared profit sharing contributions on behalf of the former employees of
Northstar Computer Forms, Inc. in accordance with its original plan in the amounts of $370,000, $375,000 and
$400,000 in fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(11) ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Company purchased all the outstanding stock of Tennessee Business Forms, Inc. (TBF), a privately held
company located in Tullahoma, Tennessee, and the associated land and buildings from a partnership, which
leased the facility to TBF, for $1.2 million on January 3, 2006.  The acquisition of TBF continues the Ennis strategy
of growth through acquisition of complimentary manufactured products to further service our existing customer
base. The acquisition will add additional short-run print products and solutions as well as integrated labels and
form/label combinations sold through the indirect sales (distributorship) marketplace.
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Projected
Year Payments

2006 $ 3,705
2007 2,985
2008 3,355
2009 2,425
2010 4,120

2011 – 2015 20,540
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The following is a summary of the purchase price allocation (in thousands): 

The Company acquired all the outstanding shares in its merger with Alstyle Apparel (Alstyle) on November 19,
2004.  Alstyle shareholders received 8,803,583 shares valued at approximately $145,523,000 (based on the 30
day average closing price prior to the date of the Agreement and Plan of Merger) and $2,889,000 cash.  Debt
of approximately $98,074,000 was assumed.  Alstyle produces and sells active-wear apparel through six facilities
in California and Mexico and seven distribution centers located throughout the U.S. and Canada.  Alstyle was
acquired to supplement and broaden the scope of products offered by Ennis.  The purchase price has been
allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair market value at the date of acquisition.
Approximately $37,774,000 of goodwill related to Alstyle acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.  The purchase
price of Alstyle was as follows (in thousands of dollars):

On November 1, 2004, the Company acquired 100% of the stock of Royal Business Forms, Inc., (Royal) a
privately held company headquartered in Arlington, Texas for $3,700,000 in Ennis treasury stock (approximately
178,000 shares, which was based on the average closing price for 30 days immediately prior to three calendar
days immediately prior to the closing date.).  Royal has been in existence and operating in Arlington, Texas since
1959 and has customers throughout the United States.  The acquisition of Royal continues the Ennis strategy
of growth through related manufactured products for Ennis’ existing customer base.  The acquisition has added
additional short-run print products and solutions and financial documents sold through the indirect sales
(distributorship) marketplace.

Effective June 30, 2004, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Crabar/GBF,
Inc. for approximately $18,000,000 with consideration in the form of debt assumed of $11.5 and remainder in
cash.  The primary reason for the acquisition was to increase Ennis’ market share.  However, Crabar/GBF, Inc.
has added high-quality long and medium run print production, along with pressure sensitive label and form-label
combinations to Ennis’ current line of medium and short run print products and solutions.  The transaction was
financed with $11,000,000 in bank loans with the balance being provided by internal cash resources.

50 N o t e s  t o  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

Accounts receivable, net $ 115
Inventories 186
Property, plant & equipment 900
Other assets 25
Goodwill 44
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (70 )

$ 1,200

Ennis common stock issued 8,803,583 shares $ 145,523
Cash 2,889
Alstyle debt assumed 98,074
Purchase price of Alstyle $ 246,486
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The Company has recognized certain costs related to exit activities and integration costs attributable to the
Crabar/GBF acquisition.  These costs totaling approximately $1,500,000 were recognized as part of the assumed
liabilities and included in “Other – Accrued Expenses” in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in 2005.  The costs
were primarily related to contracts related to previous owners.  Other costs included lease exit costs and
severance payments.

The following is a summary of the purchase price allocation (in thousands):

The results of operations for Alstyle, Royal and Crabar/GBF are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements from the dates of acquisition.  The following table represents certain operating information on a pro
forma basis as though all three companies had been acquired as of March 1, 2003, after the estimated impact
of adjustments such as amortization of intangible assets, interest expense, and related tax effects for the fiscal
years ended (in thousands except per share amounts):

The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred if the acquisitions had been in
effect for the periods presented.
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Unaudited Unaudited
2005 2004

Net  sales $ 567,700 $ 545,686
Net  earnings 30,595 18,062
Net earnings per share-basic 1.09 .71
Net  earnings per share-diluted 1.08 .70

Crabar Royal Alstyle

Cash $ 133 $ 601 $ 3,187 
Accounts receivable, net 7,553 1,125 4,457 
Other receivables 1,082 -- 639 
Prepaid expenses 298 76 1,451 
Other current assets -- 211 1,697 
Inventories 4,435 1,985 55,801 
Property, plant & equipment 8,087 808 21,033 
Goodwill 6,204 -- 137,700 
Trademarks 80 -- 61,000 
Customer list 1,760 -- 22,000 
Other identifiable intangibles 92 -- 3,763 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (11,464) (1,106) (66,242)

$ 18,260 $ 3,700 $ 246,486
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(12) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets of acquired businesses
and is not amortized.  Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis,
or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, using a fair-value-based test that compares the fair value of the
asset to its carrying value.  Fair values of reporting units are typically calculated using a factor of expected
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Based on this evaluation, no impairment was
recorded.  The Company must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to
determine the fair value of the respective assets in assessing the recoverability of its goodwill and other
intangibles.  If these estimates or the related assumptions change, the Company may be required to record
impairment charges for these assets in the future.

Intangible assets with determinable lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life.
The cost of trademarks is based on fair values at the date of acquisition.  Trade names with determinable lives
and a net book value of $941,000 at fiscal year end 2006 are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life (between 1 and 10 years).  Trademarks with indefinite-lived lives with a net book value of
$61,000,000 at fiscal year 2006 are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis.

The cost of purchased trade names is based on appraised values at the date of acquisition and is amortized on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life (between 10 and 15 years) of such trade names.  The Company
assesses the recoverability of its definite-lived intangible assets primarily based on its current and anticipated
future undiscounted cash flows.

Aggregate amortization expense for fiscal year 2006 was $2.3 million.

The Company’s estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows:

52 N o t e s  t o  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s

2007 $ 1,944,000
2008 1,805,000
2009 1,792,000
2010 1,776,000
2011 1,775,000

Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net

As of February 28, 2006
Amortized intangible assets

Trademarks $ 1,234 $ 293 $ 941 
Purchased customer lists 23,760 2,128 21,632 

$ 24,994 $ 2,421 $ 22,573 
As of February 28, 2005

Amortized intangible assets
Trademarks $  1,234 $ 144 $    1090 
Purchased customer lists 23,760 485 23,275 

$ 24,994 $ 629 $ 24,365

Unamortized intangible assets, as of February 28, 2006 and 2005
Trademarks $ 61,000 
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The following table represents changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years ended (in
thousands):

During the fiscal year end 2006, adjustments of $248,000 were added to Crabar goodwill due to an increase in
accrued expenses and adjustments of $585,000 were deducted from Alstyle goodwill due to changes in
accrued expenses and deferred income taxes.

(13) SEGMENT INFORMATION AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company operates in two segments – the Print Segment and the Apparel Segment.

The Print Segment, which represented 57% of the Company’s consolidated sales for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2006, consisted of three operating groups - the Forms Solutions Group, the Promotional Solutions
Group and the Financial Solutions Group.  The print market continues to evolve due to technology
improvements, consolidations, etc. Plants that once produced only standard form products, or were niche
product printers, now produce promotional products, labels, etc. and provide other value-add services.  Our
plants have seen the same degree of evolution over the past several years, which has resulted in them losing,
to some degree, their product/group specific identity.  We see this as a continuing evolution in the market, and
as such, we now consider it prudent to manage/monitor and report these plants at the Print Segment level and
not at the Group level.  For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, we will continue to discuss
the various groups and will disclose group financial data in this Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements,
as an accommodation to our readers; however, you are cautioned about drawing any inferences or conclusions
with respect to any such financial data, due to the factors indicated above.    

The Forms Solutions Group is in the business of manufacturing and selling business forms and other printed
business products primarily to distributors located in the United States. Assets in this group increased in 2005
primarily as a result of the June 30, 2004 Crabar/GBF, Inc. acquisition. The second group in the Printing Segment,
the Promotional Solutions Group is primarily engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing and
distributing printed and electronic media, presentation products, flexographic printing, advertising specialties
and Post-it® Notes.  Assets in this group increased in 2005 primarily from increased accounts receivable from
Adams McClure sales increase; and decreased in 2006 primarily from decreased accounts receivable from
Adams McClure sales decline and write offs. The third group in the Printing Segment, the Financial Solutions
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Forms Promotional Financial Print Apparel
Solutions Solutions Solutions Segment Solutions

Group Group Group Total Group Total

Balance as of March 1, 2004 $ 13,827 $ 6,579 $ 14,014 $ 34,420 $     - $  34,420 
Goodwill acquired during year 5,918 -- -- 5,918 138,134 144,052 
Impairment losses -- -- -- -- -- --   

Balance as of March 1, 2005 19,745 6,579 14,014 40,338 138,134 178,472 
Goodwill adjusted during year 242 -- -- 242 (434) (192)
Impairment losses -- -- -- -- -- --   

Balance as of February 28, 2006 $ 19,987 $ 6,579 $ 14,014 $ 40,580 $ 137,700 $ 178,280 

Print Segment Apparel
Segment
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Group, designs, manufactures and markets printed forms and specializes in internal bank forms, secure and
negotiable documents and custom products.  Substantially, all of the sales of the Printing Segment sales are to
customers in the United States. 

The second segment, the Apparel Segment, which accounted for 43% of our fiscal year 2006 sales, includes
the Apparel Solutions Group, and consists of Alstyle Apparel, which was acquired in November 2004. This group
is primarily engaged in the production and sale of active-wear including t-shirts, fleece goods, and other
wearables.  Assets in this group increased in 2006 primarily from increases in inventory. Alstyle sales are
seasonal, with sales in the first and second quarters generally being the highest.  Substantially all of the Apparel
Segment sales are to customers in the United States.

Corporate information is included to reconcile segment data to the consolidated financial statements and
includes assets and expenses related to the Company’s corporate headquarters and other administrative costs.

Segment data for the fiscal years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as follows (in thousands):
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Forms Promotional Financial Print Apparel
Solutions Solutions Solutions Segment Solutions Consolidated

Group Group Group Total Group Corporate Totals

Fiscal year ended 2006:
Net sales $ 188,551 $ 85,632 $ 47,227 $ 321,410 $ 237,987 $  -- $ 559,397
Depreciation 3,223 2,376 1,627 7,226 7,604 644 15,474
Amortization 361 -- -- 361 1,976 -- 2,337
Segment earnings (loss)
before income taxes 25,792 9,117 8,442 43,351 30,085 (9,465) 63,971
Segment assets 91,209 32,914 31,334 155,457 320,113 18,831 494,401
Capital expenditures 574 1,898 505 2,977 5,061 1,002 9,040

Fiscal year ended 2005:
Net sales $  177,618 $ 83,881 $ 47,809 $ 309,308 $  56,045 $  -- $ 365,353
Depreciation 3,356 2,455 2,141 7,952 1,878 537 10,367
Amortization 283 -- -- 283 426 -- 709
Segment earnings (loss)
before income taxes 25,761 11,168 7,346 44,275 3,575 (10,385) 37,465
Segment assets 90,950 45,514 33,230 169,694 312,788 14,764 497,246
Capital expenditures 1,313 1,332 557 3,202 237 2,704 6,143

Fiscal year ended 2004:
Net sales $ 142,006 $ 67,024 $50,330 $ 259,360 $         -- $ -- $ 259,360
Depreciation 3,288 2,355 2,959 8,602 -- 614 9,216
Amortization 132 -- -- 132 -- -- 132
Segment earnings (loss) 
before income taxes 21,830 7,433 6,876 36,139 -- (7,249) 28,890
Segment assets 68,950 33,287 36,004 138,241 -- 15,802 154,043
Capital expenditures 1,408 620 1,011 3,039 -- 1,504 4,543

Print Segment Apparel
Segment
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Identifiable long-lived assets by country includes property, plant and equipment net of accumulated
depreciation.

The Company attributes revenues from external customers to individual geographic areas based on the country
where the sale originated.  Information about the Company’s operations in different geographic areas as of and
for the fiscal years ended is as follows (in thousands):
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United
States Canada Mexico Total

2006
Net sales to unaffiliated customers

Customers
Print Segment $ 321,410 $        -- $       -- $ 321,410
Apparel �Segment 220,090 17,897 -- 237,987

$ 541,500 $ 17,897 $      -- $ 559,397
Identifiable long-lived assets

Print Segment $ 40,903 $       -- $       -- $ 40,903
Apparel �Segment 12,814 102 3,720 16,636
Corporate 6,264 -- -- 6,264

$ 59,981 $     102 $ 3,720 $ 63,803

2005
Net sales to unaffiliated customers

Customers
Print Segment $ 309,308 $       -- $      -- $ 309,308
Apparel �Segment 50,950 5,095 -- 56,045

$ 360,258 $  5,095 $      -- $ 365,353
Identifiable long-lived assets

Print Segment $ 44,326 $       -- $      -- $ 44,326
Apparel �Segment 14,685 137 4,527 19,349
Corporate 5,887 -- -- 5,887

$ 64,898 $     137 $ 4,527 $ 69,562

2004
Net sales to unaffiliated customers

Customers
Print Segment $ 259,360 $       -- $      -- $ 259,360
Apparel �Segment -- -- -- --

$ 259,360 $       -- $      -- $ 259,360
Identifiable long-lived assets

Print Segment $ 42,765 $       -- $       -- $ 42,765
Apparel �Segment -- -- -- --
Corporate 3,715 -- -- 3,715

$ 46,480 $       -- $      -- $ 46,480
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(14) QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table represents the unaudited quarterly financial data of the Company for Fiscal years ended 2006 
and 2005 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

(15) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases certain of its facilities under operating leases that expire on various dates through fiscal
year ended 2013.  Future minimum lease commitments and sublease income under noncancelable operating
leases for each of the fiscal years ending are as follows (in thousands):
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For the Three Months Ended May 31 August 31 November 30 February 28

Fiscal year ended 2006:
Net sales $ 149,113 $ 148,116 $ 131,690 $ 130,478 
Gross profit 37,478 37,252 35,620 31,740 
Net earnings  10,558 10,576 10,098 9,305 
Dividends paid 3,940 3,945 3,946 3,949 
Per share of common stock:

Basic net earnings  $ 0.42 $ 0.42 $ 0.40 $ 0.37 
Diluted net earnings  $ 0.41 $ 0.41 $ 0.39 $ 0.36 
Dividends $ 0.155 $ 0.155 $ 0.155 $ 0.155 

Fiscal year ended 2005:
Net sales $ 65,736 $ 73,374 $ 91,750 $ 134,493 
Gross profit 17,060 19,352 22,874 31,471 
Net earnings  4,582 5,370 6,104 6,903 
Dividends paid 2,542 2,546 2,546 3,940 
Per share of common stock:

Basic net earnings  $ 0.28 $ 0.33 $ 0.36 $ 0.27 
Diluted net earnings  $ 0.27 $ 0.32 $ 0.35 $ 0.27 
Dividends $ 0.155 $ 0.155 $ 0.155 $ 0.155 

Operating
Lease Sublease

Commitments Income Net

2007 $  7,366 $ (1,253) $  6,113
2008 6,323 (1,276) 5,047
2009 4,810 (106) 4,704
2010 1,680 -- 1,680
2011 1,050 -- 1,050
Thereafter 338 -- 338

$ 21,567 $ (2,635) $ 18,932
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Rent expense attributable to such leases totaled $9,388,000, $5,837,000 and $2,407,000 for the fiscal years
ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company also enters into real property leases, which require the
Company as lessee to indemnify the lessor from liabilities arising out of the Company’s occupancy of the
properties.  The Company’s indemnification obligations are generally covered under the Company’s general
insurance policies.

From time to time we are involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of our business.
We do not believe the disposition of any current matter will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

(16) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Net cash flows from operating activities reflect cash payments for interest and income taxes are as follows 
(in thousands):

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities.

(17) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 10, 2006, the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of 151⁄2 cents a share on its common stock
and has set the record date for the Annual Shareholder Meeting.  The dividend was paid May 1, 2006 to
shareholders of record on April 14, 2006.  May 1, 2006 also has been set as the record date for shareholders
entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 29, 2006. 

On March 31, 2006, the Company amended its credit facility entered into November 19, 2004.  The amended
agreement eliminates the term portion of the facility and increases the revolver from $100 million to 
$150 million. 
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2006 2005 2004

Interest paid $  8,038,000 $ 2,755,000 $    830,000
Income taxes paid $ 22,957,000 $ 13,273,000 $ 10,208,000

2006 2005

Fair value of assets acquired in business acquisition $ 1,226 $ 199,433
Liabilities assumed in business acquisitions $    70 $ 110,689

Promissory notes issued for business acquisitions
Common stock issued for business acquisitions $      -- $ 149,223
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F I N A N C I A L  D ATA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
ENNIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries (a Texas
corporation) as of February 28, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes
in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for the years then ended.  These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 28, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of
February 28, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 12, 2006,
included in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

Dallas, Texas
May 12, 2006
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
ENNIS, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity and cash flows
of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) for the year ended February 29, 2004.  These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  We were not engaged to perform
an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  Our audit included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.   An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated results of operations and cash flows of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended February 29,
2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Dallas, Texas
April 14, 2004
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  Our internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  All internal control systems,
no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.  A system of internal control may become inadequate
over time because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.   

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of February 28,
2006 using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.  Based on this assessment, our management concluded that,
as of February 28, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over our financial reporting as of
February 28, 2006 has been audited by Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report.
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We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, that Ennis, Inc. (a Texas Corporation) and subsidiaries maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of February 28, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).  Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of February 28, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.  Also in our opinion, Ennis, Inc. and
subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February
28, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. 
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Ennis, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 28, 2006 and
2005, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income and cash flows for the years then ended February 28, 2006, and our report dated May 12, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Dallas, Texas
May 12, 2006

The most recent certification by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits to our Form 10-K.  We have also filed with the
New York Stock Exchange the most recent Annual CEO Certification as required section 303A.12(a) of the
New York Stock Exchange listed Company Manual.
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